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London
Security plc

Each year we provide fire protection for over 233,000 customers
through our local presence in the United Kingdom, Belgium,
the Netherlands, Austria, France, Germany, Denmark

and Luxembourg.

Customer focus.

We continually strive to offer the highest quality of service and preducts to
our valued customers. We employ the best trained and qualified engineers
with quality products that have achieved the highest performance ratings to
blue chip companies, governments or private individuals.

Our services and products are commercialised
through long-established brands.

Nu-Swift, Ansul, Total, Premier and Master: the unigue styling of our products
makes them immediately recognisable to both the industry and customers alike,

We aim to achieve the highest levels of service
and product quality.

Cur employees are trained to the most stringent servicing standards and
we develop the highest performance-rated fire products. These activities
are performed whiist considering the preservation of the environment.

(’\ﬂom information at londonsecurity.org )>




STRATEGIC REPORT

Highlights

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Earnings per share Operating profit
135.8p £24.2m
+1.68% +4.3%
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OUR EUROPEAN GROUP BRANDS

Lonaan Sccurity pic continues to celver industry-leading profit
margns siNcg acquiring the Ansul andg Nu-Swift businesses.
The challenges for the future are to cot nus to grow through
acquisiton ang organically and to bula uper sur competitive

advantage of beirg a complete tve profect on solstion providar,
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Chairman’s statement

J.G. Murray, Chairman

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Finarcial highlights of the

audited results for the year ended
31 December 2018 cempared with
the year ended 31 December 2018
are as follows:

ravenue ot £146.9 milion
{2018: £137.7 milflionk:

operating profit of £22.2 million
2018: £23.2 million}:

profit for the year of £16.8 million
(20138: £16.5 million*);

earnngs per share for the year
of £1.36 (2018: £1.347): and

a dividend per share of £0.80
{2018: ©0.80;.

" Reztated — see note 32,

Trading review

The financial highlignts illustrate that the
Group's revenue increased by £9.2 millicn
(8.79%) to £146.9 millicn and operating
profit increased by £1.0 million i4.3%)

o £24.2 million. These results reflect:

» the positive impact of acquisitions in
2018 and 2019 in the United Kingaom:,
Austria. Belgium, the Netherlands
and Denmark:

+ improved performance from our
service business in continental Eurcpe:

« continued improverment from newer
service offerings (e.g. emergency lights
and passive fire protection); and

= the movemnent in the Euro to Sterling
average exchange rata. which had
an adverse effect of £1.0 million on
reported revenue and £0.2 million
on operating profit. A more detailed
review of this year's performance
is given in the Financial Review
and the Strategic Report.

Acquisitions

It remains a principal aim of the Group
to grow through acquisition. Acquisitions
are being sought throughout Europe and
the Group will invest at prices where an
adequate return is envisaged by the Board.
In the year under review the Group has
acquired eight established fire protection
businesses and has grown s presence
in the Netherlands. Belgium and the UK
with the acquisition of serwice contracts
from smaller well-established businesses
for integration into the Group's

axisting subsidiaries.

Management and staff

2019 was a year in which the

staff performed well and. on behaif

of the shareholders, | would like to
express thanks and appreciation for
their contribution. The Group recognises
that we can only achieve our aims with
talented and dedicated colleagues who
provide outstanding customer service

in every area of the business,
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Dividends

A final dividend n respect of 2018 of
£0.40 per ordinary share was paid 1o
shareholders on 5 July 2019, An interim
dividend in raspect of 2019 of £0.40 per
ordinary share was paid to shareholders
on 29 Novamber 2019, The Board is
recommending the payment of a final
dividend in raspect of 2018 of £0.20 per
ordinary share to be paid on 10 July 2020
to shareholders on the register on

12 June 2020. The shares will be
marked ex-dividend on 11 June 2020.

Coronavirus impact assessment

It is clear that the coronavirus pandemic
will have a significant mpact on the
business and we have taken a number
of actions to weather the storm. When
the pandemic first appeared in China,
the initial threat was to our supply chain.
It is now very clear that the nsk to customer
demand is by far our greatest challenge
and we are prepared for a significant
downturn in sales for the duration of
the pandemic.

Many of the components which we are
reliant on are sourced from China and we
have therefore suffered some delays in
the delivery of such components in the
first quarter, The Chinese government's
response to the outbreak has meant that
capacity returned over the course of
February and into March. Our strategic
stockholding has meant our production
impact has been minimised. We are
continuing to monitor the effects on

our manufacturning capability.

With a return to relative normadity on

the supply side, we are now focused

on customer demand. By the middle

of March, the virus had impacted all

of our Burgpean trading territories.
Throughout Europe governments are
responding to the pandemic by applying
severe restrictions on movement and
introducing social distancing measures
which have forced many of our customers
to temporarily close. We have prepared
the business for varying levels of sales
declines by temporarily reducing staff
levels in some locations.
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where his iz deemez essenual. for
examplz in seme arzas including
health, cornreurications and ullites.
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Future prospects

Az the stuation conmmuies, cash
managernent il be a key consideration;
the Lender: Security Group has a healthy
balance sheegt, strong cash raserves and
a track recard for good cash generation,
Dabt recovery remains consistent with
previous years and staff costs will be

contralled usng the furcugh process
wrere applicacle. The Board therefore
considers that its strong balance shest
ard material net cash position means
trazitis el placed to navigate hrough
tre impact of the coronavirus outhreak.
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J.G. Murray
Chairman

21 May 22020
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Financial review

IN SUMMARY

« Our acguisiive strategy continues
to add to Group profitability.

= The fire security markst
I3 experiencing increased
competition and downward
pressure on prices,

+ We will continue to concentrate

on the highest levels of customer
service to mitigate this.

Consolidated Income Statement

The Group's revenue increasad by

£9.2 million (6.7%) to £146.9 million.
Operating profit increased by £1.0 mullion
{(4.3%) to £24.2 million. Cf the increased
revenue, £0.7 million was generated by
KW Fire Protection Limited and HP Fire
Prevention Sprl. two new subsidiaries
acquired by the Greoup in 2019, In 2013
the Group acguired five new subsidiaries;
£7.5 millicn of revenue was generated

in a full year from these businesses.

A further £1.0 million of revenue was
generated through smailer acquisitions
and organic growth in our existing
businesses. The market for fire protection
is mature and highly competiive; as a
result there is a downward pressure

on pricas which 1s eroding our margins.
We will continue to concentrate on the
highest levels of customer sarvice to
mitigate this.

These results also reflect the moverment
in the Fure to Sterling average exchange
rate, which has increased from 1.13 to
1.14. If the 2019 results from the Eurgpean
subsidiaries had been transiated at
2018 rates, revenue would have been
£147.9 million instead of £146.9 million.
which wouid represent an increase

of 7.4% on the prior year, On the same
basis, operating profit would have been
£24.4 milion instead of £24.2 mittion,

an increase of 5.2% compared to 2015.

Net finance costs have increased by
£0.1 millon. This ncrease represents
interest on gperating leases recognised
on the balance sheet following the
implementation of IFRS 16 discussed in
greater detail below. Gther compenents
of finance income and cost, including
interest on the Group's borrowings, the
revaiuation of our denvative financiai
instruments and interest on ocur pension
scheme assets and liabilities. have
remained broadly similar to last year.
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The Group's effective income tax rate
has remained constant at 30% which
i3 above the UK corporation tax rate of
19% as most of the expense is incurred
v jurisdictions where the rate is higher.

Consolidated Statement

of Financial Pasition

The Group continues to demonstrate
consistently profitabie performance arnd
strong cash conversion. This is ifustrated
by a well-capitalised balance sheet with
net cash and a strong asset base.

The Group ended the year with cash

of £27,143,000 (2018; £26.110.000;.

The Group's borrowings disclosad in
these financial staterments were refinanced
in May 2018 with the Group's existing
bankers. Lloyds Bank plc, resulting in a
new multi-curency tenm loan denominated
as £3 miion in Sterling and €8 million

in Euros. The facility is being repaid
evenly over five years. The total of ioans
outstanding at the year end was
£7.170,000 (2018: £9,566.000).

IFRS 16 “Leases” was issued in

January 2016 with an effective date

of 1 January 2019. The majority of the
Group’s lease commitments have been
brought onto the balance sheet together
with corresponding right of use assets.
At the year end the Group has recognised
right of use assets of £2.4 million and
corresponding lease habilities of

£2.4 million. In the Income Statement,
the existing operating lease charge, which
was recognised within operating profit,
has been replaced by a depreciation
charge in respect of the right of use
asset. resuiting in a net credit of £32,000
and an interest cost in relation to the
lease liability recognised within finance
costs of £64,000.

The Group has not restated prior year
figures on adoption of the new standard
with lease asset values being set equal
to lease liabilities at the date of transition
in fine with the simplfied appreach
under IFRS 18,



Treasury management and policy
The Board considers foreign currency
translation exposure and interast rates
tc pe the main potential treasury risks.
lreasury policies and guidelines are
authorised and reviewed by the Board.

To fully address the foreign currency
transiation exposurae. the Group's
borrowings, which were refinanced
in May 2018, are split between Euro
and Sterling according to the forscast
income streams, This policy acts as
a natural hedge as the effect of an
adverse exchange movemeni on
translation of foreign currency loans
would be offset by a positive effect
of translating income streams from
Europe and vice versa.

Regarding the interest risk, the Group
has entered into interest rate agreements
capping LIBOR at 1.50% and EURIBOR
at 0.25% to take advantage of low market
interest rates. These agreements remain
in place untii the loan i1s repaid in 2023,

Segmental reporting

The chief operating decision maker
*GODM™) for the London Security
Group has been identified as the Board
as ultimately this function is responsible
for the allocation of resources and
assessing the performance of the
Group's business units. The nternal
reporting provided to the CODM s a
combination of consolidated financial
information and detailed analysis by
brand. The management informaticn
on which the CODM makes s
decisions has been reviewed to dentify
any reportable segments as defined
by IFRS 8. The Group's companias in
different European countries operate
under similar economic and poltical
conditions with no different significant
risks associated with any particular area
and no exchange control nsks and the
Group's operations are managed on

a Pan European basis with close
operational relationships between
subsidiary companies. in addition.

the nature of products. services.
produchon and distnbution 1s consistent
across the region. Accordingly, the
Diractors have concluded that under
IFRS 3 the Group operates in a single
geographical and market segment and
that thers 1s a single reportable segment
for which financial information s
regutarly reviewed by the CODM.

Key risks and uncertainties

The Group’s key risks and uncertainties
are discussed in the Strategic Report.

Coronavirus impact assessment
Please refer to the Charman’s Statement,

Anrual Beport ad Accounts 2012 London Security ple



STRATEGIC REFPORT

Strategic report

Principal activities

London Security ple is an investment
halding company and its Board
co-ordinates the Group's activities.

I'ne principal activities of the Group are
the manufacture, sale and rental of fire
protection equipment and the provision
of associated mantenance services,

Business model

The Group is a leader in Europe’s

fire security industry. We provide fire
protection through our local presence
in the United Kingdom, Belgium. the
Netherlands. Austria, France, Germany.
Denmark and Luxembourg.

The Group's services and products

are commercialised through well and
long-established brands such as Nu-Swift,
Ansul. Premier and Master. The unigue
styling of our products makes them
immediately recognisable to both the
industry and customers alike.

The Group aims to achieve the highest
levels of service and product quality
through continued traming of our
employses to the most stringent servicing
standards and the development of the
highest performance-rated fire products.
These activities are performed whilst
considering the preservation of the
environment, The Group continues to build
on its reputation for service exceilence
and quality to develop a "safety sofutions”
business with a well-diversified and loyai
customer base.

Business review and results

The Consclidated Income Statement
shows a profit attnbutable to equity
shareholders of the Parent Company
for the year ended 31 December 2019
of £18.7 mitlion (2018: £16.4 million).
The Group's resulls are discussed in
detail in the Financial Review. The Group
pad dividends in the year of £9.8 million
comprising a final dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2018
of £0.40 per ordinary share and an
interim dividend of £0.40 per crdinary
share in respect of the year ended

31 December 2019. The Board is
recommending the payment of a final
dividend in respect of the year ended
31 December 2019 of £0.20 per
ordinary share. The Group ended the
yaar with net assets of £116.2 million
{2018 £111.7 million).

Key performance indicators

Given the straightforward nature of
the business, the Company's Directors
are of the opinion that the analysis of
revenue, operating profit and earnings
per share are the appropriate KP!s for
an understanding of the development
and performance of the business.

The analysis of these KPls is included
in the Charrman’s Statement and the
Financial Review.

8172 statement

The Board believes that the presence
and requirements of a longstanding
controlling shareholder help focus the
Group's strategy on long-term shareholder
value craation. Decisions are taken
Bearing in mind the effect on long-term
growth in revenue. operating profit

and earnings per share.

Our employees are vital in delivering
the higrest levels of service in order
t0 mitigate the downward pressure on
prices n our market. We involve and
listen to employees to mantan strong
employee engagement and retain
talented peapie. We have a number
of employee reprasentative groups
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across Europe to facitate this.
investment in our workforce through
ongeing traning is seen as essential to
keep up to date with evolving legislation
and protect the business from competition.

The Birectors recognise the need to
foster business relationsnips with
supphers and customers, We aim to
have an open, constructive and sffective
refationship with all suppliers including
site visits by our staff to ensure supply
chain sustainability, responsible sourcing
and supply chain resikence.

The Directors consider the impact of the
Group's operations ¢n the environment.
In recent years many of our product
innovations have been focused on
limiting our environmental iImpact.

We have a long list of accreditations,
including ESC 9001 and ISCG 14001,

To maintain a reputation for high
standards of business conduct our
website, www lcnconsecurity.org.
explains our approach to the ten
principles set out in Section 3 of the
Quoted Companies Alhance Corporate
Governance Code issued in 2018.

To timit the effect of the majority
shareholder, the Parent Company

and EQI entered into a relationship
agreement dated 10 December 1999 in
which ECH provided certain assurances
to the Parent Company with regard to its
relationship with the Parent Company.
The agreement confirms that the business
and affairs of the Parent Company shall
e managed by the Beard in accordance
with the Parent Company’s Memorandum
and Articles of Asseciation and with
applicable laws and all relevant statutory
provisions for the benefit of the
shareholders as a whole. Any transactions
or other relationships betwesen any
member of the EO! group and the
Parent Company would be at arm's
length and on a normal commercial
basis. The Drectors declare ther
interest and take nc part in decisions
where appropriate.
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J.G. Murray
Chairman

21 May 2020

Jean-Jacques Murray
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GOVERNANCE

Directors and Company advisers

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Jacques Gaston Murray 100
Chairman

Mr. Murray’s involvement in the fire industry began in 1961
with his investment in a business which became General
Incendie S.A.. one of France's largest fire extinguisher
companies. He invested in Nu-Swift and became Chairman
N 1982 and the majority shareholder in 1984 when Nu-Swift
acquired Associated Fire Protection Limited, which owned
General Incendie 5.A. He has a business interest in. and is
Chairman of. Andrews Sykes Group pic ("Andrews Sykes”).
a separately AlM-quoted UK company.

Xavier Mignolet 55
Managing Director

Xavier Mignolet joined the Greup in 1995. He graduated

with a master's degree in Commercial and Financial Sciences
at HEC in Liege in 1987 and started his career in financial
audit for PwC in Brussels. He is a Non-Executive Director

of Andrews Sykes.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Jean-Jacques Murray 53
Vice Chairman

Jean-Jacgues Murray 13 the sorn of Jacques Gaston Murray,
He graduated with a BA i Finance from Los Angeles
Pepperdine Urnversity in 1988 and obtained his master's
degree in 1990. His responsibility is the control and strategic
direction of the Group. He is the Non-Executive Vice
Chairman of Andrews Sykes.

Emmanuel Sebag 51
Executive Director

Emmanuel Sebag has responsibility for the review

and supervision of Group operations. He graduated

with a master's degree in Industrial Administration from
Carnegie-Mellon University in 1991, He is a Non-Executive
Director of Andrews Sykes.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Jean-Pierre Murray 51
Non-Executive Director

Jean-Pierre Murray is the son of Jacques Gaston Murray.
He graduated from Los Angeles Pepperdine University in
1990 with a BA in Finance, and gained his master's degree
in 1993, He is a Non-Executive Directer of Andrews Sykes
and a number of private companies.

Marie-Claire Leon 56
Non-Executive Director

Marie-Claire Leon has been responsible for managing
various projects around the world with Jacgues Gaston
Murray. She graduated from California State University in
1988 with a bachelor's degree in Business Administration.
with a particular focus on Marketing Management, New
Venture and Small Business Management. She s

a Non-Executive Director of Andrews Sykes,
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Henry Shouler 82
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Henry Shoufer is a Director of PKL Heldings plc. He also
has a number of other directorships in private companies.
The Board considers Henry to be independent after being
assessed aganst the circumstances set out in Provision 10
of the Financial Reporting Council’s 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code {"2018 Code". The Board is mindful that
the 2018 Code indicates that Independent Non-Executive
Diractors should not serve for more than nine years.
However, the Board bslieves that Henry continues to act
with the utmost independence despite his tength of tenure.



Tre majority of the Board have been
actively involved in the fire protection
industry for more than 20 years. Financial
aexpertise 15 provided to the Board by the
Company Secretary and external advisers.

If he feels it appropriate. the Senior
Non-Executive Director is encouraged
to seek external professional advice
at the Group's expense.

Corporate governance

The Parent Company's and Group's
approach to applying the ten prnnciples
set out in Section 3 of QCA Corporate
Governance Code is set out in

detail on the Group’s website,
www.londonsecurity.org.

The Board mests on two occasions
each year. All Directors receive a
pre-meeting briefing package and
post-meeting minutes and appropriate
attachments. As a number of the Beard's
Directors are based overseas, it is not
appropriate for all Directors to attend
all meetings. Where a Director cannot
attend, he can give his contributions tc
an attending Director or the Company
Secretary and relay any comments
concerning the Board minutes before
they are adapted. Should there be
anything that requires reconvening the
meeting, an all parties telephone Board
meeting is convened.

All Directors receive appropriate maonthly
management information and have the
opportunity to discuss this with the
Managing Director or any member

of his team.

On an annual basis, following the Annuat
General Meeting, the Board reviews the
performance of its two committees.

Board committees

The Beard maintains two standing
coemmittees comprising Executive
and Non-Executive Directors. Both
committees have written constitutions
and terms of reference.

The remuneraticn commitiee compnses
H. Shouler and J-J. Murray. The commuttee
is chaired by H. Shouler. The remuneration
committee reviews the performance of
Executive Directors and sets the scale
and structure of thair remuneration and
the basis of therr service agreements
with aue regard to the interests of the
shareholders. No Director s permitted
o participate N decisions concerning
his own remuneration. Details of
Diractors' remuneration are set out

in the Directors’ Remuneration

Repocrt in the Annual Report.

The audit committee currently
comprises H. Shouler and J-J. Murray.
H. Shouler is independent of management
and EOi Fire SARL. The committee is
chaired by H, Shouler, The audit committee
is responsible for ensuring that the
financial performance of the Group 1s
properly menitored, controlled and
repcriect on. The audit committee
considers risk and internal control as

a fundamental part of its responsibilities.
It meets the auditors 1o discuss the audit
approach and the results of the audit.
The audit committee considers the need
to intreduce an internal audit function
sach year. After taking into consideration
the current size and compiexity of the
Group. the committee believes that it
would not be cost effective 16 have an
internal audit function and the committee
feets that sufficient comfort is obtained
through the scope and quality of
management’'s ongoing monitonng

of nsks.

Due to the small size of the Board, the
Directors consider that a nomination
commities need not be established.

COMPANY INFORMATION

Company advisers
Company Secretary
and registered office
Richard Poliard

Premier House

2 Jubilee Way

Elland
West Yorkshire HX5 9DY

Registered number
00053417

Chartered accountants and
statutory independent auditors

Grant Thornton UK LLP

No.1 Whitehall Riverside
Leeds LS1 48BN

Registrars
Link Asset Services

Northern House
Woodsome Park
Fenay Bridge
Huddersfield HD8 0GA

Stockbrokers and
nominated advisers

WH Ireland Limited

24 Martin Lane
London EC4R CDR

Annual Report ard Accounts 2019 London Security plc



GOVERNANCE

Report of the Directors

Tne Cirectors presert their report and
tre audited Group and Parent Caompany
financial statements for the vear ended
31 December 2019, Future developments
in the business and dividends paig and
proposed ara discussed in the Strategic
Report. The Group's financial risk
management policy is discussed in

the Financial Review.

Directors

The Directors of the Parent Company
all of whom served during the whaole
of the year ended 31 December 2013,
and up to the date of signing the
Group and Parent Company financial
statements. were:

Executive Directors

J.G. Murray. J-J. Murray, X. Mignolet
and E. Sebag.

Non-Executive Directors
M-C. Leon. H. Shouler and J-P Murray.

J.G. Murray, J-P Murray and H. Shouler
retire by rotation and. being eligible.
offer themselves for re-election at the
Annual General Mesting.

Noene of the Directors have a service
contract with the Parent Company.

Brief biographical details of the Directors
are set cut on page 8.

Directors’ interests

No Cirector in office at 31 December 2019
had any disclosable interest in the share
capital of the Parent Company or any
subsidiary undertaking.

Directors’ liability insurance
The Parent Company has mantained a
Directors’ qualifying third party indemnity
policy throughout the financial year and
up to the date of signing the financial
tatements. Neither the Company’s
indemnity nor insurance provide cover
in the event that a Director is proved to
have acted fraudulently or dishonastly.
No claims have been made under either
the indemnity or insurance pohcy.

Substantial shareholdings

At 21 May 2020. the Parent Company
had been notified of the Tollowirg interests
of 3% or more in its share capital:

2t Tag,

Wl Starang

Jtshares ol

EQI Fire SARL  9.861,954  80.43%
Tristar Fire Corp. 2,256.033 12.40%

insofar as it is aware. the Parent Company
has no institutional sharenolders.

J.G. Murray is a Director of London
Security plc as well as EOQI Fire SARL.
J.G. Murray. J-J. Murray. J-P. Murray
and M-C. Leon are Directors of London
Security plc as well as Tristar Fire Corp.

Corporate culture and ethical values

The Group has a long-establshed hentage
and reputation based on sound ethical
values and the Board considers this

to be of great ongeing value. Many
companes within our market sector
envy our reputation and we frequently
optimise this commercially and by
attracting new staff.

In recent years many of cur product
innovations have been focused on
limiting our envirocnmental impact.
We have a long list of accreditations,
including 1ISO 9001 and IS0 140041,

We pride curselves on providing our
staff with a good working environment
within a strong sthical cultura. The local
staff handbooks are regularly reviewed
by the senior operations teams and are
provided 1o ali staff on commencement
of employment and are available at ai
times via a Company intranst site. The
Group has a targe number of long-serving
staff members. many with 30 years plus
service, which is a testarment 1o our
working culture.
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Health, safety and the environment

The maintenance and improvement of
waorking standards to safeguard the health
and wellbeing of staff and customers
ailke 15 a continuing priority. Health and
Safety Officers are appointed at each
Group location and they receive periodic
training to keep abreast of both legislative
requrements and technological advances.
ft 15 Group policy 1o operate in a reasonable
manner with regard to the environment,

Empioyment of disabled persons
The Group is committed to employment
nolicies that follow best practice based
on equal opportunities for all empiloyees
and offer appropriate training and career
development for disabled staff. If members
of staff bacome disabled. the Group
continues emplayment wherever possible
and arranges retraining if required.

Employee involvement

The Group recognises the need to
ensure effective communications with
employees to encourage involvement in
the Group's performance and achieve a
comimon awareness of factors affecting
that performance. Policies and procedures
have been developed o suit the needs
of each subsidiary undertaking. which take
into accournt factars such as numbers
employed and location and inctude
newsletters and communication meetings.

Payment to suppliers

The Parent Company and Group agree
payment terms with al suppliers when
they enter into binding purchase contracts.
The Group seeks to abide by the payment
terms agreed with suppliers whenever it
is satisfied that the supplier has provided
the goods or services in accordance
with the agreed terms and cenditions.
The Group does not follow any standard
or external code which deals specifically
with the payment of suppliers.

At 31 December 2019 Group average
creditor days were 57 days (2018; 56 days).
The Parent Company had no trade
creditors at either year end.



Stakeholder engagement

Engaging with our stakeholders is key to
our success and delivering our strategy.
We have various mechanisms that
enable the Board and management to
understand and consider stakeholder
views as part of ther decision making.
The key stakeholder groups and the
ways in which we engage with them

are set out below:

Customers — feedback from customers
enables us to develop service plans and
products that better meet their neads.
Our engineers interact with customers
on & daily basis. When customers need
extra support our customer service
team 1s avallable to offer assistance.

Suppliers — we work with suppliers
worldwide which provide products that
support us in delivering high-quality and
safe products for our customers, We
aim to have an gpen, constructive and
effective relationship with all suppliers
including site visits by our staff,

Investors — we maintain regular dialogue
with investors to commuricate cur strategy
and performance in order to promote
investor confidence and ensura our
continued access to capital. We have
launched a new website to facilitate
distripution of our rasults and news.
There is an AGM open to all investors.

Employees — the Group recognises the
need to ensure effective communications
with employees t0 encourage involvement
in the Group's performance and achieve
a common awareness of factors affecting
that performance. Policies and procedures
have been developed to suit the needs
of each subsidiary undertaking. which
take into account factors such as numbers
empioyed and location and include
newsletters and communication meetings.
We involve and listen to employees to
maintain strong employee engagement
and retain talented peopile. We consuit
emploveess or their representatives on a
regular basis so that ther views can be
taken into account N making decisions
which are likely to affect their interests.

We have a number of smployee
representative groups across Europe
to facilitate this. We encourage the
nvolvemert of our employees in the
cerformance of therr Company by
linking their remuneration to a series
of incentive schemes.

Envircnment - the Group has a long-
established heritage and reputation
based on sound sthical values and
the Board considers this to be of great
ongoing value. In recent years many
of our product inngvations have been
focused on fimiting our environmental
impact. We have a long list of
accreditations, including iSO 8001
and 180 14001,

Donations

The Parent Company and the Group
made ne political donations during the
year {2018 ©Nil} and made charitable
donations of £1,000 (2018 £1.000).

Future developments

Future developments are discussed in
the Chairman's Statement and in the
Strategic Report.

Post balance sheet events
Subsequent to the year end the Group

has comgleted the acquisition of further

service contracts for a total of
£1,034,000 (2018; £1,473,000).

The repercussions surrounding the
coronavirus outbreak are discussed in

further detal n the Chairman’s Statement
and n note 31 1o the financial staterments,

Dividends

Dividends are discussed in the
Chairman's Statement,

Purchase of own shares and
authorities to issue shares

As at 21 May 2020 there remaimned
outstanding general authority for the
Directors to purchase a further 500,000
ordinary shares. Resolution $is to be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting
to extend this authority until the 2020
Annual General Meeting.

The special business to be proposed at
the 2019 Annual Generat Meeting aiso
includes. at resolution 8, a special
resolution to authorise the Directors to
issue shares for cash, other than pro
rata to existing shareholdings, in
connection with any offer by way of
rights not strictly in accordance with
statutory pre-emption rights or
otherwise, up to a maximum nominal
value of £6.131. being 5% of the Parent
Company's issued ordinary share
capital. This authonty will expire on the
earlier of the date of next year's Annual
General Meeting or 15 months after the
passing of the resclution. The passing of
that resolution is subject to resolubon 5,
an ordinary resclution, being approved
to authorise the Directors to have the
power 1o 1ssue ordinary shares.
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GOVERNANCE

Report of the Directors continued

Statement of Directors’
responsibilities in respect

of the financial statements

Tha Directors are responsible fer
preparing the Annual Report and the
financial statements in accordance
with applicable law ard reguiations.

Company law recuires the Diractors to
prepare financial statements for sach
financial year. Under that law the
Ciractors have prepared the Group
financiz! statements ir accordance
with International Financial Reporting
Standarcs ("IFRSs") as adepted by tha
Eurcpear Unicr ard Parert Company
fimarcial staterments in agcordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Agcountng Practics (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, comprising FRS
102 “The Financial Reporting Standard
applicabla in the UK and Republic of
Irzland”. and applcakle law). Uncer
company law the Directors must not
approve the firancial starements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair vew cof the state of affairs of the
Group and Parent Company and of the
profit or loss of the Group and Parent
Company for that pericd. In preparing
the financial statemants, the Directors
are required to:

select suitable accounting policies
and then apply them consistently;

sate whether appiicable #F1Ss as
adoptad by the European Unien have
bsen followed for the Group financial
staternants and United Kingdom
Accountng Standards, comprising
FRS 102, have keen followed for the
Parent Gempany financial statements,
stbject tc any materal departures
disclosed and axplained in the
financial staterrents;

+ make judgements and accouning
astimates that are reascnable and
orudent; and

» prepare the financial statements on
the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the
Group and Parant Company will
continue in businass.

The Directors are responsible for
keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficiant to show and explain
the Group and Parent Company's
wansactions and discloss with
rezsonanle accuracy at any time the
financial posttion of the Group and
Farent Company and gnabie them to
ensure that the financial statements and
the Directors’ Remuneration Report
comply with the Companies Act 20085,

The Directors are also responsibls for
safeguarding the assets of the Group
and Parent Company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the
pravention and datection of fraudt and
other irregularities,

The Directors of the ulimatz Pzrent
Company ars responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the ultimats
Farent Compary's website. Lagisiation
in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination: of
finansial statements may differ from
legislation in cther jurisdhctions,

Directors’ confirmations
In *he case of each Director in office at
the date the Directors’ Reoort is approved:

* g0 far as the Directer is aware, thera is
no refevant audit information of which
the Group and Parent Company’s
auditors are unawars; and

*

they have taken all the steps that they
ought to have laken as a Dirsctor in
order to make themselvas aware of
any rolevant audit information and to
establish that the Group and Parert
Company’s auditors are aware of
that information,
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Independent auditors

During the year Grant Thomton UK LLP
werg agpoirtad as auditors, A resolutior
is to be propesed at the Annual General
Mesting in accordance with Sectior 489
of the Companies Act 2006 for the
re-appointment of Grant Thomton UK
LLP as incependent auditors of the
Farent Company and authorising the
Directors to set their remuneraticn.

Annual General Meeting

Tre Notice of the ArnJaal Generg
Meeting iz set cut on pages 64 to 56.
A form of proxy is erclosed for you to
complete accorcing to the instructions
orinted on it and sand {a the postage
rad address. All proxies rrust be
received by 11 am on 28 June 202G,

By crder of the Board

R. Pollard
Company Secretary
21 May 2020




Directors’ remuneration report

The Parent Company has followed the provisions i Scnedule D of the UK Corporate Goverrance Code with respect (o
Directors’ remuneration except that due 1o the small size of the Board. the remuneration commiftee does not consist
exclusively of Independent Non-Executive Diractors. As the Parent Company s qucted on AIM. it 1s not required to make
disclosures specified by the Remuneratior Report Regulations 2002.

Remuneration committee

The remuneration commitiee comprises H., Shouler and J-J. Murray. The committee is charred by H. Shouler. who 1s an
Independent Non-Executive Director. The remuneration of Non-Exacutive Diractors s set by a committee of the other Directors.
Nao Director is Invoived in deciding his or her own remuneration.

Policy on Executive Directors’ remuneration

It is the Parent Company’s policy to provide the packages needed to attract. retan and motivate Direciors of the quality required.
bearing in mind the size and resources of the Parent Company and its position relative 1o other companies.

Directors’ remuneration {audited)

Directors’ emoluments totalled £558,589 (2018: £566,067). This includes an amount paid to the highest paid Director

of £377,007 (2018: £381,047).

Irr compliance with the amendment to AIM Rule 19 the following disclosure in respect of Directors’ remuneration is made:

Srrokrrants and COMGENSaton roluarg
Ay Lash T RON-C3ET Seretts ecr L en

2018 2018
J.G. Murray £Nil Nl
J-J. Murray £117,582 £116,922
X. Mignolst £377.007 £381.047
E. Sebag £Nil £Nil
J-B Murray £20,000 £20,000
M-C. Leon £20,000 £20,000
H. Shouler £24,000 £24,000
M. Gailer ENif £4.088

None of the Directors participate in Group pensicn arrangements, The Company paid no contributions tc any private
pension schemes.

The costs relating to the Head Office and other expenses of the Executive Directors are limited under a Services Agreement
dated 10 December 1999 and reviewed annually. The total costs amounted to £783.344 (2018: £800,473) for the year ended
31 December 2019 as per the Services Agreement.

On behalf of the Board
H. Shouler

Chairman of the remuneration committee
21 May 2020
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FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent auditor’s report

to the members of London Security plc

Opinion

Our opinion on the financial statements is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of London Sacunty pic ithe “parent cormpany’j and #s subsidiar s the 'groug’t for e
year ended 31 December 2019, which comprise the consclidated income statament, corsolidated statament of comprehensive
incoe. consclidated and parent comeary statements of changes in eguity. consolidated statement of financial posit or. pare~t
company balance sheet, conschdated statement of cash flows a~d notes to tre firancial statements. includirg z summary of
signif cant accaunting policies. The financ al reporting framework that has been appled in the creparation ¢f the group financal
statements 15 applicable law and International F nancial Reporting Standards (IFRSs as adeptea by the Eurorpean Union. The
financial reperting framework that has ceer applied in the preparation of the parant company financial statements is applicable
law and Lnitea <irgdom Accounting Standards. including Fina~cial Beperung Standard 152 Tre Financial Reporing Standard
applcatle in the UK and Republ ¢ of Irsland (Urited Kingdom Generally Accecied Accounting Practice).

in cur opIvon:

+ the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state 0 the group’s and of the parent comoary's affars as at
31 December 2019 and of the greup’s orofit for the year ther e~ded;

« the group financial statemen's have ceen properly preparsd in accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the Eurcpean Union:

+ the parent company financial statements have been progerly prepared in accordance with Unitaed Kingdom Generally
Acceoted Accounting Practice; and

« the financial statements have beer preparaed in accordance with the reqguirements of tne Cormpanies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK {ISAs (UK) and appglicable law. Our responsibiiit es
under those standards are further described in the "Auditor’'s responsibiitties for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the group and the parent company 10 accordance with the ethical requirements that are ralevant to owr
audit of the financial statements in the UK. including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to hsted entities, ard we have fulfilled our
other athical resoonsigilities N accordance with these requirerrents. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaned is sufficient
and appropriate to crovide a basis for our opinion.

The impact of macro-economic uncertainties on our audit

Cur audit of the financial statements recures us to obtar an understanding of all relevant uncertanties, including those ansing

as a conseguence of tre effects of macro-ezonomic uncertamties such as Covid-19 and Braxd. All audits assess and challerge the
reascnableness of estirares made oy the drrectors and the refated disclaosures and the appropraienass of the goirg concern nasis

of preparation of the financial statements. All of these depend on assessments of the future economic envirarniment and ths company 's
future prospects and performance.

Cowvd-19 and Brexit are amongst the ~ost ssgnificant economic events currently taced by the UK, and at the date of this report
their effects ara sucject to urprececented levels of uncertainty, with the full range of possible outcormes and their imoacts urknown.
We appked a standardised firm-wide approach in response to these uncertainties whan assessing the company's future prospects
and performarce. However, no audit should be expected o oredict the unknowable factors or alt poszaible future imolications for a
company associated with these parlicular events.

Audit work performed

In evaluating whether the directors’ use of the going concern bas s of acccunting in tne preparation of the financial statements is
appropriate and whether a matenal uncerianty axists that may cast sigrificart doubt about the group's or the parent comrpany s actlity
te centinue 1o adopt the going concern bas:s of accountirg for a period of at least twelve monthg from the date when the financial
statements are authonised for issug. we undertook procecures 0 evaluate management's assessmert of the mpact of Covnd-19

on the group's working capital and covenant conditors. Thase procedures comprised:

+ Obtaning managsment's forecasts and covenant calculations covenng the perod te Jung 2021 including their assessment of
the impact of Covid-19;

Evaluating the key assumptions apphed in the forecast, including the forecast reduct:on m revenus as a result of the leckdown
restrictiors in place and assumplions on the avalacle level of support from governments 'n t-e countries 1 which the Group

operates. for reasonableness and determmned whather they had bean applied appropnatsly. We also considered whether the
assumpions are consistert with our understanding of the business and with current lockdown rastrichon guidance In each country:

Requesting ma~agement to prepare additonal sensitsea forecasts to model a range ot downside scananos and assessed hese
sensitised forecasts for reasonablsness;
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Audit work performed continued

* Hsading e terms of the fnarce racilues (o ootain an understand ng ¢ the debt covenanis assessmy managemert's forecast
covenant comphance. and challenging whether It maragement's maost severe downside scerano any oreach it the financial
covenants can be remedied:

- Assessing maragement's determination of the impact of the mitigating facters ncluding the suspension of dividends,

» Assessing the ~ehability of maragemen:'s forecasting oy comparng the accuracy 2t actual hstoncal finarcial performance
15 hrstor ¢ forecast informaton:

+ Performing sensitaity analysis or management's forecasts 1o determime wrether a reazonable changes in the key assumptons
woutd lead o the elimination of the headroom in the'r casn flow forecasts: and

» Assesming the adeguacy of the going concerr disclosures included within the Financal Staterments by management includirg
the Corcnavirus impact assessment in the Chairman’s statement, t~e basis of preparation in "o 2 to the financia) statements,
the significant juogement aisclosure in ~ote 4 to the financial statements and the post balance sheet event disclosure ir note 31
to tne firancial staterments.

Conclusions relating to going concemn
We have nothing to report in respect of the foliowing matters in relation to which the 1SAs (UK require us to report 1o you where:

- the directors’ uze of the going concerr basis of accaunting ir the preparation of the financial staternents 1s not appropriate; or

+ the direstors have not d sclosed In the financial statements any identifiea maenal urcertainties that may cast significant doubt
abcut the group’s or the parent company’s ability to continue to adogt the going concern bas s of accounting for a period of at
least twelve months from the date when the financial staternents are authorised for issue.

In cur evaluation of the directors’ conclusions. we considered the nisks associated with the group's business model. including
effects arisng from macro-economic uncertainties such as Covia-19 and Brexit, and analvsed how those rigks might affect the
groug's resources or ahility to continue operaticns over the period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
stataments are authorised for issue. In accordance with the above, we have nothing to report in thesa respects.

Howsver, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent avents may result in cutcomes that are inconsistent
with juagements that were reascnaole at the tme they were made. the absence of reference to a mater al uncertanty in this auditor's
report is not a guarantee that the group will continue in operation.

Qverview of our audit approach
» Overall group materiality: £1.1m. which represents approx mately 5% cf the group’s profit
before taxatiorn.

* Key audit matters were identified as improper revenue recognition and the valuation
of ntangible assets.

+ We performed a combination of full scope auart proceduras and speclied aud: proceduras
on the financial information of certain UK, Dutch and Austrian components. An audit to
componeant materiality was periormed by an overseas component auditor for significant
componerts in Belgium. As part of tne audit procecures 37% of revenue was subject to
testng through erther a full scop= audit or specfied audr procedures.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, :n our crofessional judgement. ware of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current pericd and include the most significant assesses asks 0° material misstaternant fwrether or not due o fraua)
that we izentiied. These matters includec those that nad the greatest effect or: the overall audit strategy; the allccation of resources in
the audit; and directing the efiorts of the engagement tzam. These maters which mciude the matter described in the *The impact of
IMAacro-sconomic uncertainties on cur audit’ secticn of our report were addresses i tme contex: of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and n formng our cpinion thereon, and we do not provide a separats ocoimion on thase matters,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent auditor’s report continued

to the members of London Security plc

Key audit matters continued

Keay Audit Matter — Group

How the matter was addressed in the audit - Group

improper revenue recognition

The group has a numcer of aifferent revenue streams
with revenue saither be ng recogrised at & point 1 tme
or over the penca of ime that tre service s performed.

Under Internatanal Standard on Aud ting {15A; (UK;
243 trere 1S a presumgenion that there are nsks of fraud
in revenue recognition. We have assessed thisrs<ts
reside primaridy within unpaid {(i~cluding accrued)
revenues as there s an ncreased risk that these
revenues did not occur if they kave not been paid

at the balance sheet date.

Tne revenue recorded by the Group is also one of the
key determinants of Group underlying profit before
tax, which is the primary financial Key Performance
Indicator (<P for the Groun.

Trerefore, we ident-fied revenue recognition as
a significant risk, and one of the most significant
assessed risks of matenial misstatement.

Cur audit work included. but was not restnctad to:

*

Assessing whatner the 3roup’s revanue racognition policy 1s n accordance
wit~ 1FRS15 ang whether 1t s being apclec approprately;

Documenting cur understanding of the systers and controls in place
around the recording of reverus,

Agreeing a sample of unpais and accruad ravenue fransactons o
customer payments and evidence of performarce t© confirm the
ocourrerce of the revenue transaction

Inspection of a sampla of contracts to voucr ravenue is peing recorded
apreroorately: and

Analytical review of material revenus streams through comparison

with pricr year ard expectations based on cu- understanding of

the business;

Tre group’s accounting policy on ravenue recognition and relatea
disclosures are shown in note 2.

Key observations

Based on our audit work we did not :dentify any material instances of revenue
not being recognised In accordance with tre stated accounting policies.

Valuation of intangible assets -
Non-current assets carrying value
exceeds fair value

The Group has a material amcunt of goodwill and
ather ntang:ble assets held on the balance sheet
as at 31 December 2018,

Management has determined the recoverable amount
of gocdwil and service contracts based on value-in-
use calculations for each of the four cash-generating
units as disclosed in note *3 to the financial statements
using agiscounted cash flows. There ars significant
judgements involved in these calculations ncluging
farecasting the operating cashflows and discount rates.

We therefore identified tre nsi that nor-current assets’
carrying value exceeds thair far value as a significant
risk, and one of the most significant assessed nsks

of material misstaternent.

Our audit work included, but was not restricted to.

Documenting our understanding of the key controls surrounding
impairmant ot goodwill;

Obtaining management’s impairment model and challenging ther
assessment of its approgriateness and methodology in line with the
reguiraments of IAS 36 "imgcairment of aszets’;

Fvaluaticn of the hustorical accuracy of forecasts used in the onor yvear
discounted cash flow maodel compared to the results achievad nthe
current year;

Challenging the assumptions included within tre discountea cash flow
model. which included gaining an understanding of key factorg and
judgements applied in determinmg future growth rates;

Challenging whether the identif-caton of the four cash generating Lnits

i3 appropriate;

Challenging of the discount raes used i~ the model and using the aud.tor's
experts to assess them for reasonableness: and

Performance of sensitivity analysis an the forecast cash flows and ther
impact on the carrying vaiue of the intangidle asse’s.

T~e greup's accounting policy or impair—ent of goodwdl 13 snown in note 2
to the financial staterments and related disclosures ars included in rots 13.
Tre carryng value of goodwill and service co~tracts nas been disclosed as
a signficant estimate in note < to the financial statements. The directors have
ncluded thei- post calance sheet avent disclosura in relation to Covid-19 in
note 31 to the financial statements.

Key observations
Based cn our audit work performed we are satisfied that the ntangible assals
have been accounted for in accordance with IAS 36 1mpai-ment of assets’.
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Key audit matters continued

Key Aucit Matter - Group

How the matter was addressed in the aucht — Group

Valuation of intangible assets — valuation
and allocation of intangibles arising on
acquisitions

Tre Group have made a number of acquisitions in ths
yedr ended 3° Decamber 2019 and recorded £3.8m
of additions w0 intang:bles assets of which €2.3m s
allocated o service contracts and the remainder
allocated 1o goodwill.

IFRSZ 'Business combination’ requires assets and
habilt.es in the consolidated financial statements to be
recorded at fair vakie, There is significant management
judgement imolved in determining the fair value of the
assets and fabilittes acquired. including the calculation
of the ‘ar value of service contracts, with judgements
including attrition rates of contracts acquired, and {ne
discount rate used in the valuation,

We therefore identified the valuatan and allocation of
intangibies ansing on acquistion as a significant risk.
and cne of the most significant assessead risks of
material misstatement,

Our audit work includes, but was not restricted to:

+ Documenting cur undarstanding of the key contrals in clace surrcunding
the valuat:orn and allocator of irtargibles ansing on acquisiton;

+ Challenging maragement as 10 whether the adjustments to the acquired
balance sheeis o record themr ar fair value are appropnate. This included
cnallenging management's valuation modei for servce contracis acquirsd. with
nput from auditor's axpes to evaluaie whethe management’s methodclogy
s i ine with accepted valuat on methods and the aporopr ateness of mputs
to the model such as attnition rae and discount rate used.

» Reperforming the recalculation of goodwill: ang

« Challenging. with input from auditor's experts, management's valuaton model
for service contracts acquired 10 svaiuate whether managerment's met~odotogy
ig in line with accepted vajuaton methods and the aperoprateness of imputs
to the model such as attriton rate and discount rate useq.

= Agreeing trhe corsideration paid by reference to the acguisiion agreements,

Tne group's accounting policy on accounting for acqu:sitions is shown 1i»

in note 2 to tne firancial statements, and related disclosures are includec in
note 27. The accounting for business combinations has been disclosed as a
significant estimate in nate 4 to the financial statements.

Key observations
Based on our audit work performed we are satisfied that intangible assets
arising on acouisiton are acceunted for in line with IFRS 3 'Business combinations'.

We did notidentify any key audit matters relating to the audit of the financial statements of the parent compary.

QOur application of materiality

We define matenality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes t probabile that the sconom-c decisions
of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changsd or influsnced. Ws use matenalty in determining the rature, tmng and
axtent of our audit work and in evaluating the rasuits of that work.

Massralty was determined as follews:

Materiality measure Group Parent
Financial statements £1.1m which is approximately 5% of profit before tax.,  £525,000 which is 1% of wotal assets. This
az a whole This cencrmark 1s cons.dered the most appropriate benchmark s considered the most appropnate

because profit befors tax is a measure agairst which  given the activities of the parent company
performance of the Group is assessed both internally  primarily being a holding company and its major
and externally ard also a generally accepted auditing  activites relate to fixed assets included in the

benchmark for ksted compan:es. financial statements.
Ferformance materiality 65% of financ-al statsment materiahty. 65% of fimancial statement rmaleriality.
used to drive the extent
of our testing
Speciic matenality Wa determined a lower laval of specific materiality  We deterrminad a lower level of specific materiality
for certain areas such as directors’ remuneration. for certain areas suwch as directors’ rémunsaration
Communication ¢f £55,000 and issatements telow trat £25,000 and rmisstatements below tat
rmigstatements to tha threshold that, in cur view, warrant reporting tirreshold that, n our view. wa-ra~t reporting
audit committee on gualitative grounds. on gualizative grounds.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent auditor’s report continued

to the members of London Security ple

An overview of the scope of our audit
Cur audit agproach was a risk-cased appreach founded on a torcugh urderstandimg of the group's business. 1ts environmant
and r sk orofle ang 1 garticular ncluded:

+ Optaning ang docu~e~trg an ungerstanding of the design and implamsantate~ of controls - place related o sigiificant r sks:

A evaluation the group's intarral control environmeant including s 1T systems and cotrols:
Group g Y

+ Evaluaticn cy the group sudit team of UK and overseas components 1o assess the sigrificance of that component and to determne
the planred a.dit response bases on a measurs of materiahty, including their relaive contribut.or 1o the group’s revenues and profit
hefore taxaticn

+ Full scope procedures wera performed for four Selgium components and 2re UK component to a fevel of component matenality.
These procedurss included 2 combination o test of details ard analytical procedures. Thaese components subect to full scope audit
procedures covar 39% of the consolidated revenues:

* The audit of the Belgium componerts was performed by the Belgium componenrt awaitor such that wa had appropriate direction
and involvement in tha work of the component auditor throughout the audit. This included criefirg the component audit team.
directing the risk assessment and fraud discussions, regular communicaton wit~ the component auditor, attendance at audit close
meetings a~d drectly reviewing and evaluating the work performea by the component ausitor for the purpose of the group audt;

+ Specified audit procecures cerformed by tre group audit team for a further thireen components that are located - the UK,
Netherlands ard Austria These components subject to specified audit proceduras cover 44% of the consolidated revenues and our
audit procedures included substartve procedures in relation to IMproper revenue recognition ana other risks identified by the gioup
audkt team:

« For thosa componerts that were not ind-vidually s.gnificant to the group, we carried cut analytical procedures;

« Components subyect to full scope or specified audit procedures contributed 32% of the consolidated revenues.

Other information

Tne directors are responsible for the other information. The other nformation compnses tre informat on included in the annual
recort, other than the financial staterments and our auditor's report thereon. Cur opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other inforratan and. except (o the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report. we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion theraon,

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, cur responsibility 1s to read the otner information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with tha financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. if we identify such material inconsistencies o apparent matenal misstatements, we
are reguired to determine whether trere is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a matenal misstatement of the other
informataon, If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude trat there is a matenal misstaternent of this other information.
we are required o report thar fact.

We have nothing to report In this regard.

Qur opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 is unmodified
I our cpirion, Dases on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

* the irformaton given 10 the strategic report and the directors’ report for tre firanzial year for wiicn the inancial statements are
prepared 1s consistent with the financial stataments; and

« the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance wit~ applicable legal requirsments.

Matters on which we are required to report under the Companies Act 2006
in the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company ans s enwronment obtained it the course
of the audt. we have notident fied material misstatements in the strategic recort or the directors’ repart.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing o repart  resczct of the following matiers ¢ relanon ¢ woich the Comparies Act 2000 reQuires Js 10 report 10 vow

If 1IN cur opin-or:

» adeouale acoountng records have not een kedt Dy the parent company ©f relurns ageguals 'or our audh! hay e not been reesiven
from brang-es not wisted by us: or

« the parent company “nancial statements are net in agreement with the account ng recards anc returns; or
» certan disclosures of drectors’ remu-eraticr specif ed by law are not made: or

« we have not recarved all tre Informat or ara axolanations we require for cur audit,

Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page *2. the ireciors are responzble for the preparanon
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for sucn intarnal conrof as tre directors
determine 1S necessary to enable the preparaton of financial statemenss that are free from matsnal msstatement, wnether due 10
frauz or error.

In prepanng the financial statements, the direcicrs are responsible for assessing ihs group's a~d the parert corpany's abiity to
continue as a gaing concern, dsclosng, as applicalle, matiers related to going concern ard using the going concern basis ¢f
accounting unless the directors either intand to hguidats the group or the parent cormpany or to cease operatens. or have ne
realistic alternative but to do sc.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonabie assurance about whethe- the financial statements as a whole ars fres from material
misstatement, whether due tc fraud or errar, and 10 issug an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reascnable assurance is a
high leval of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1ISAs (UK; wilt always detect a material
misstatement whan it exists. Visstatements zai arise from fraud or error anc are congiderad matanig if, ndiidually or in the aggregate.
they could reasonatly be exgected to influence the economic dacisions of users taken on the basiz of these fnarcial slatemments.

A further description of our responsibiiies for the audit of the financial stataments is lccated on the Financial Reporting Counci's
webs:te at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms art of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely ' the company’s members, as a body, in accordancs with Chagter 3 of Part 16 of the Corpanes Act 2008,
Our audit work has been undertaken so that wa migat state to the company’s mambers t~ose mattars we ara required to stats to
them in an awditor's report ana for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do nct accept or assume responsibibty
to anyone other than the company and the company’s mar-hers as a cody for cur audtt wor< for this repcrt. or for the ooinions we
have formed.

Mark Overfield BSc FCA
Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor. Chartered Accountants
l.eeds. United Kingdom

21 May 202C
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated income statement

for the year ended 31 December 2019

2019
o5 £000

Revenue 146,920 137.711
Cost of sales (36,293) (31.780;
Gross profit 110,627 105.931
Distribution costs (54,140) 50.593:
Administrative expenses {32,333y (32.163;
Operating profit 24 24,154 23.175
EBITDA’ 32,503 28.557
Depreciation and amortisation {8,349) (6.382)
Operating profit 24 24,154 23.175
Finance income 142 131
Finance costs {254) (171}
Finance costs - net 6 (112 (10
Profit before income tax 7 24,042 25.155
Income tax expense 8 (7,229} {6.623)
Profit for the year 16,813 16512
Profit is attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company 16,653 16,359
Non-controlling interest 160 13

16,813 18.512
Earnings per share
Basic and diluted 9 1358p 133.7p

© Earm ngs vefore interest. tax, depreciation and amortization.
The notes on pages 25 to 57 are an integrat part of these consolidated financial statements.

The above results are all as a result of continuing operations.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 December 2019

2019

Nites £:000
Praofit for the fnancial year 16,813
Othar comprehensive (expense)/incoms:
ltems that may be reciassified subsequently to profit or loss:
— currency translation differences on foraign currency net investments {2,389) 381
ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or oss:
- actuarial gain recognised in the Nu-Swift Pension Scheme 21 414 15
- movement on deferred tax relating to the Nu-Swift Pension Scheme surplus 19 (145) (51
— actuarial loss recognised in the Ansul Pension Scheme 21 412) {145}
- movement on deferred tax relating to the Ansut Pension Scheme deficit 19 103 36
Cther comprehensive (expensel/income for the year. net of tax (2,429} 262
Equity sharehoiders of the Company 14,224 16,661
Non-controlling interest 160 113
Total comprehensive income for the year 14,384 16,774

The notes on pages 25 to 57 ars an integral part of these consglidated financial statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December 2019

IR}

At 1 January 2018 (previously reported) 123 344 1 3.470 92,408 189 103,568
Prior year adjustment (note 32) — - - — — 1.179 —_ 1,179
At 1 January 2018 (as restated) 123 344 1 2.033 8,470 93,587 185 104,747

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the financial year - - - —_ — 16.399 113 16512
(restated — note 32)

Cther comprehensive income/{expense!:

- exchange adjustments - - - — 361 - - 361
- actuarial loss on pension schemes — — — - - 1129} - 1129
- net movement on deferred tax

relating to pension asset — — — — — 30 - 30

Total comprehensive income for the year
{restated — see note 32) — — — — 361 16.300 113 16,774

Contributions by and distributions
ta cwners of the Company:

- dividends - — — - — (9.809) — (8.809;
At 31 December 2018
and 1 January 2019 {restated — note 32) 123 344 1 2,033 8,831 100,078 302 111,712
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the financial year — — — — — 16,653 160 18.813
Other comprehensive (expense)/income:
- exchange adjustments - - - — (2,385 — - 12.389)
— actuarial gain on pension schemes — — — - — 2 — 2
- net movement on deferred tax

relating to pension asset — — — — — 142} — (42;

Total comprehensive {expensel/income
for the year — — — — (2.389) 16,613 160 14,384

Contributions by and distributions
to owners of the Company:

- dividends - — - — — {9.809) — (3,809
Distribution t¢ non-controiling interest — — — — — — {113 (113}
At 31 December 2019 123 344 1 2,033 6,442 106,882 349 116,174

The merger reserve i3 not a distributable reserve. The other reserve relates entirely to the effects of changes in foregn currency
exchange rates.

The notes on pages 25 to 57 are an integral part of these consolidated tinancial statements.
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Consolidated statement of financial position

as at 31 December 2019

2018
000

Assets
Non-current assets

Pcperty. clant and 2quipman: i 12,164 12.077 11.582
Fignt of use assats 12 2,360 - —
Intangitle assets 13 67,504 66.077 B83.573
Defarrad tax assat 19 683 ai1 59
Ratrement bansit surpius 271 4,959 2,430 43357
87,670 23,3895 B3
Current assets
Invartorizs 13 13,434 13,293
Trade and otner rezer, acles 2 27,822 23,732
Cash and cash 2quivalents L 27,143 265,110
68,399 53,133
Total assets 158,069 121 330
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other pay atles 13 {23,158) (22713
(987) 11731
20 {2,048) 12, 125)
20 {1,134) - —
Dermvain 2 fnancial instuments - - (=
Brovision for labiltias and charges 22 - 10 —

Non-current liabilities

Trade and uther pay ablkes 13 (850} 022 (1.003
Borrovangs 20 (5,122} 7oAy -
Loaze habiltios 20 (1,256} — -
Dervariva financal nstrumeants 11 47} 11 —
Daferred tax habilines 13 {2,908} 2TV (2.008
Fetirzment beneft obhgatons 21 (2,215} 11.3301 T2
Provisicr for liaciliies and charzes 22 {169} {181} (137
{12,568y (13.224) SAtE
Total liabilities (39,895} 30.818) (37.87"
Net assets M6,174 111,712 103717
Shareholders’ equity
Ordinary sharas 23 123 123 123
Shara premium 23 344 324 344
Capital redempticn resenve 23 1 1 1
Marger rasen/e 2,033 2.0338 2.053
Oher reserves 6,442 8.83 3.470
Hetared sarnings 106,882 100.073 93.037
Equity atiributable to owners of the Parent Company 115,825 111,410 104,238
Non-controlling interest 22 349 302 139
Total equity 116,174 111,712 104,747

The notes on pages 25 to 57 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

The financial staternents on pagss 20 to 57 were approved by the Board of Dirsctors on 21 May 2020 and were signed on its behalf by
J.G. Murray Jean-Jacques Murray

Chairman
21 May 2020

Registered number of the Company: 53417
Annual Roport and Ascounts 2019 London Security plc



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 EQFRN

E'000 e
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 24 32,363 28,385
Interest paid {160} (147)
Income tax paid {7,639) (7,393}
Net cash generated from operating activities 24,564 20,845
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings net of cash acguired) 27 (2,264) (4,274}
Purchases of property, plant and equipmern (3,974) (3,551%)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 329 398
FPurchases of intangible assets (2,068) {746)
Interest received 27 12
Net cash used in investing activities {7,950} 8,161
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayments of borrowings {2,091} (1.614)
Paymaent of lease liabiities (1,750) —
Dividends paid to the Company's shareholders {9,809} {9,809
Distribution to non-controlling interest {113} -
Net cash used in financing activities (13,763} (11.423)
Effects of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents (1,818} 197
Net increase in cash in the year 1,033 1,458
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 26,110 24,652
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 17 27,143 26,110

The notes on pages 25 to 57 ars an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2019

1 General information

London Security pic ithe “"Parent Company”) 1s a leader =~ the European fire secunty industry. providing fire protection for cur
custormers through a local presence in the UK. Belgium. the Netherlands, Austria. France. Germany, Denmark and Luxembourg

The Parent Company is a public imited liaoility company incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom. The registered
office 15 Premier House, 2 Jubiles Way, Elland. West Yorkshire HX5 90Y.

The Parent Company has its primary listing on AIM, part of the London Stock Exchange.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these Group financial statements are set out below.
These poiicies have been consistently apolied to all the years presented. unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

These Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU, IFRIC interpratations
and those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. These Group financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention. as modified by accounting for derivative financial irstruments at fair
value through profit or loss.

The Directors have prepared these financial statements on the fundamental assumption that the Group 1s a going concern and
will continue to trade for at teast 12 months following the date of approval of the financial statements. In determining whether the
Group's acceunts should be prepared on a going concern basis the Directors have considered the factors likely to affect future
performance. The Group's business activities, together with factors likely to affect its future development and performanca. are
described in the Strategic Report. At 31 December 2019. the Group held cash and cash equivalents of £27 million. Total debt at
31 December 2019 was £7 millicn, of which £2 million is due for repayment in the year to 31 December 2020.

The Chairman's Staternent contains a Covid-19 impact assessment detailing the effect it is having on our business. The Group
has seen a severe decling in turnover as sockal distancing and travel policies are implemented. Further to the approval of the
2020 budget in December 2019, the Directors have considered the potential impact of the Covid-19 outbreak on the Group's
results and have modelled a base case reforecast. The base case reforecast is based on the Directors’ current knowledge and
expectation and includes a levei of restrictions that would remain in forca into June 2021, The base case reforecast inciudes
significant cash headroom. In prepanng the base case reforecast. there are key judgements in relation o the timing of when
the engineers will be able to return to customer sites and provide fire protection services and the level of support from the
gevernments in which the Group operates in relation to employment costs. The Directors have concluded that while the
assumptions in the base case reforecast include significant judgement, they are appropriate and as at the date of approving
the financial statements, cur engineers are returning to work in some of the countries that the Group operates. In addition,

the Directers are satisfied that further action could be taken, if necessary, including suspending dividend payments. Whilst the
Directors expect the Group's bankers to be supportive should the Group request loan repayment deferrals or forgiveness of any
covenant breaches should the actual impact of Covid-19 be worse than reforecast, the Directors consider that the Group could
repay its external loans should that support not be available. The Directors have also modelled sensitivities to the base case
reforecast, which demonstrates that the group is forecast to have significant cash headroom after applying these sensitivities.

Accordingly, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and are satisfied that it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2013

2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Accounting developments

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are affective for the year ended 31 December 2019,
These are considered either not relevant or o have no matenal impact on tnre Group. The following standard has been
considered in more detail:

1a) IFRS 16 "Leases” was 1ssued in January 2016 with an effective date of 1 January 2019, The standard specifies how
lcases are recognised, presented. measured and disclosed. The adoption of this new standard has resulted in the Group
recognising a nght of use asset and a related leass liability it connection with all former operating leasas except for those
identified as low value or having a remaming lease term of less than 12 months from the date of initial apphcation. In the
Income Staterment. the operaling lease charge. which was recognised within operating profit, has been replaced by a
depreciation charge in respect of the right of use asset. In addition there is an interest cost in rejation 10 the igase liability
which has been recognised within finance costs.

The Group applied IFRS 15 using the modified retrospective approach, Using the modified retrospective approach the
Group has not restated comparative information. In ling with the simpiified approach under IFRS 16 the Group has taken
advantage of the practical expedient with right of use asset values being set equal to lease liabilities at the date of transition,
Areview of the Group's operating lease commitments was undertaken and identified that property and motor vehicles were
the cnly high-value items to which the standard applies.

The Group has based the incremental borrowing rate at which to discount the future lease liabiliies on the multi-currency
refinancing which was compileted in May 2018 in order t¢ set a different rate for leases denominated in Sterling (2.80%)
and Euros (1.55%).

The following is a reconciliation of total operating lease commitments at 31 December 2018 to the lease liabilities recognised
at 1 January 2019. Previously no assets were recognised in property. plant and equipment under JAS 17

= kA
Total operating lease commitments disclosed at 31 December 2018 2,762
Recognition exemption: leases with a remaining term of less than 12 manths (147)
Operating fease liabilities before discounting 2,615
Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate (78)
Total lease liahilities recognised under IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 2,537

(by There are no standards that are issued but not yet effective that would be expected to have a material Impact on the entity
in the current or future reporting periods or on foreseeable future transactions.

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities which the Group has power over. exposure or nghts to variable returns and an ability to use its power
to affect those returns. All subsidiaries share the same reporting date. being 31 December, and the same accounting policies
as London Security ple.

The purchass method of accounting is used 1o account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed
at the date of exchange. The costs directly attnbutable to the acquisition are expansed. with the exception of those refating
to the costs 10 1ssue debt or equity securities, which are recognised in accordance with 1AS 32 and IFRS 9.

ldentfiable assets acquirad and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumead in a business combination are measured initialy
at their fair values at the acqguisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minarity interest. The excess of the cost of acguisition
over the tair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acguired is recorded as goodwill.

Inter-company transactions. balances and unrealised gains on transactions betwsen Group ¢ompanies are aliminatad.
Urrealised losses are also eliminated but considered an impairment indicator of the asset transterrad,

On transition to IFRS, the Directors fixed the value of consolidated goodwill on the European subsidianes at the rate in effect
at the date of transition. as permitted under IFRS 1. Hence. the consolidated goodwill 1s prasented at cost less any provision
for diminution in value.

London Security plc Annual Beport and Accounts 2015



2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a groug of assats and operations for which discrete financial wtormation s avalable that is regularly
reviewed by the CODM. Where operatng segments share similar economic characteristics and the segments are simitar i
relation to the nature of products and services, nature of the production processes and type of customers including method
of providing the service then they may be combined into a single reporting unit. The Diractors have concluded that there s a
single reporting segment as defined by IFRS &. being the provision and mantenance of fire protection equipment in Europa.
Consequently. the results for the year and assets and liabllities relate to this one segment and one geographical area,

Foreign currency translation

{a) Functional and presentation currency
fems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic

ny

environment in which the entity operates (the "functionat currency™. The Group financial statements are presented in Sterling.
which is the Parent Company's functional and presentation currency,

{b} Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised n the Income Statement.

{c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which have the currency of a hypennflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows

(i assets and liabfities for each Siatement of Financial Position presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of
that Statement of Financial Position:

(i} income and expenses for each Income Statement are translated at average exchange rates; and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity and are reported within the Statement
of Comprehensive Income.

In accordance with IFRS 1, the translation reserve has been set at CNil at the date of transition to IFRS.

On consolidation. exchange differences arising from the translation of the net nvestment in foreign operations and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments are taken to other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity are recognised in the Income
Statement as part of the gain or foss on sale.

Property, plant and equipment

Property is carried at deemed cost at the date of fransition to IFRS based on the previous UK GAAP valuations. Plant and
equipment held at the date of transition and subsequent additions to property. plant and equipmant are stated at purchase
cost including directly atiributable costs. less accumulated depreciation.

Freehoid land 1s not depreciated. Depraciation on all other assets is caiculated using the straight line methed to allocate their
cost fess residual value over their estimated useful lives, as follows;

Freehold buldings %—6%
Plant, machinery and extinguisher rental units 10%-33%
Motor vehicles and share in aircraft 5%-33%
Fixtures, fittings and eguipment 10%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed annually and adjusted if approprate at each Statement of Financiai
Position date.

An asset's carrying amount s written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the assel's carrying amount 15 greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the praceeds with the carrying amount. These are included
in the income Statement,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2019

2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Gooawill represents the excess of the cost of an acqusition over the fair vaiue of the Group's share of the dentifiable net
assets acgured. Goodwll on acquisition of subsidianes is included in “rtangible assets”. Separately recognised gooa il
15 tested annually for imparment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

A impairment loss 1s recognised for the amount by which the asset’'s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverabie amount s the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell ana value in use. For the purposes of assessing
mpairment. assets are grouped at the lowest lsvels for which thare are separately identifiable cash flows.

Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and tosses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwil relating to the entity sold.

(b} Approval costs

Approval costs are the expenses incurred in meeting the regulatory reguirements measuring the fire rating of our products.
Approval costs are shown at historical cost, have a finte useful ife and are carned at cost less accurnulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight line method to aliocate their cost over ther estimated useful lives (10 to 20 years).

{c) Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs ncurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives (three to five years} using the straight line method.

{d) Service contracts

Acquired service contracts are capralised on the basis of the costs incurrad to acquire. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight line method to allocate the cost of the contracts over therr estimated useful lives (five to ten years! based on information
avaitable to the Directors on average attrition rates.

Right of use assets and lease liabilities
The Group recognises a right of use asset and a lease liabllity af the lease commencement date.

The right of use asset is intially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made al or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. The right of use asset is subseqguently
depreciated using the straight line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease term.

The lease liabity 15 initally measured at the present value of the lease paymaents that are not paid at the commencement date
discounted using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate,

In the comparative period assets held under operating leases were not recegnised in the Group's Statement of Financial
Position. Payments mads under operating leasss were recognised in the Income Statement on a straight line basis over the
term of the lease.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisabie value, Cost is determinad using the first-in, first-out method. The
cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour. other direct costs and related production
overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business. less applicable variable selling
expenses. Invertory is reviewed annually and a provision is made for cbsclete, slow-moving or defective items where appropriate.

Financial instruments recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabllities are recognised when the Group becomes a party te the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cashflows from the financial asset
expire, or when the financial assst and substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. A financial fiability is derecogmsed
when it 1s extinguished. discharged. cancelled or expirad.

Financial instruments classification and measurement

The Group classtfies its financial assets as those to be measured at amortised cost except for derivative financial assets that
are at fair vaiue through profit or logs. After initia recugnition. these financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the
eftective interest method. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immatenal. The Group’s financial assets
include cash and cash equivalents, trade receivabies, amounts owed by related underiakings and other receivables, The
carrying value of these financial assets is disclosed in note 16 ancl note 17 te the financial statements,
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Financial instruments classification and measurement continued

Financial liabities are inilially measured at far value and. where applicable. adjusted for transaction costs unless the Group
designated a inancial liakility at fair value through profit or loss. Subsequently. financial liabilities are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate methoed except for derivatives, which are carried subseguently at fair value with gains and
losses recogrised in profit or loss, The Group's financial kabilities include trade payable. other payables, accruals. borrowings
and dernvative firancial liabilities. The carrying value of the financial liabilties 1s disclosed o nota 14, note 18 and note 20 to the
financial statements.

Trade receivables

The Group has reviewed the composition of its trade receivables and concluded that as the expected term of the recenables
is less than one year the recewables do not have a significant financing component. Therefore the Group will inibially measure
these assets at their tfransaction price under IFRS 15 and subsequently adjust for any allowance for expected credit loss under
IFRS 8. The Group applies the IFRS @ simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected
credit loss allowance for all trade recewvables. To measure the expected credit [osses, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and days past due. Expected loss rates are based on historical credit losses
experienced. Historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking factors affecting the ability of customers
to settle the receivables. Consideration is given to the overall economic environment as well as specific indicators that the
recovery of a balance may be in doubt. The movement in the expecied credit loss is recognised in the Income Statement
within administrative expenses.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at cost at the date the contract is entered into and are remeasured at fair
value at the Statement of Financial Position date with any valuation adjustment being reflected in the tncome Statement. The fair
value at the balance sheet date is calculated based on observable intarest rates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents are included in the Staterment of Financial Position at cost. Cash and cash eqguivalents include cash
inhand. deposits held at call with banks and other short-term, highly liquid investments with onginal maturities of three months
or less, less bank overdrafts where there is a legal right of offset and an intention to settle. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities on the Statement of Financial Position.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity,

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are showh 1n equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Where the Parent Company purchases its own shares, the consideration paid nciluding amy, directly attributable incremental
costs (net of income taxest, 1s deducted from equity attributable to the Parent Company's equity holders untit the shares

are cancelled.

Trade payables

Trade payables are nitially recogrised at fair vaiue and subsequenty at amortised cost Lusing the effective interest method.

Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value. net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowngs are subsequently stated at
amortised cost.

Borrowings are classified as current lialities uniess the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the Statement of Financial Position date.

Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the Statement of
Financial Positicn date in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries operate and generate taxable incorme. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicabie tax regulation is subject to

interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid o the tax authorities,

Annusd Beport ar d Accowits 2017 London Security plc



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 3t December 2019

2 Summary of significant accounting policies continusd

Current and deferred income tax continued

Deferred income tax ts provided in full, using the net assets approach. on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and labilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However. the deferred income tax is
not accounted for it it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transacton other than a business combination that
at the tme of the transaction affects nerther accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rales {and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Statement of Financial Position date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset 18 realised or the deferred income tax liability s settled,

Deferred mcome tax assets are recognised to the extent that it i1s probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the tempaorary differences can be utilised.

Employee benefits

Pension obligations

Group companies operate varous pension schemes. The schemes are generally funded through payments to insurance
companies or trusteeg-administered funds, determined by periodic actuarial calculations. The Group has both defined benefit
and defined contribution plans. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. A defined benefit
planis a post-employment benefit pian other than a defined contribution plan. Typically, defined benefit pians define an amount
of pension benefit that an empioyee wil receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of
service and compensation.

The liability and surplus recegnised in the Statement of Financial Position in respect of defined banefit pension plans is the
present value of the defined benelit obligation at the Statement of Financial Position date less the fair value of plan assets,
together with adjustments for actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit obligation s calculated
triennially by iIndependent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation
is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bends that are
dencminated in the currency in which the benefits wil be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of
the related pension iability,

The interest cost and the expected return on the assets are shown within finance cost and finance income respectively within
the Consolidated Income Statement. Actuariat gains and losses are recognised immaediately in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Net defined benelit pension scheme deficit and surplus are presented separately on the Statement of
Financial Position within non-current fiabifities and non-current assets respectively before tax refief. The attributable deferred tax
asset and liability is included within deferred tax and is subject to the recognition criteria as set out in the accounting policy on
deferred taxation.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contnbutions to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on
a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as an employee benefit expense when they are due.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more
likely than nat that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been raliably estimated.
Previsions are not recognised for future operating losses,

Prowisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects risks specific to the liability,

Revenue recognition
Revenue is shown net of value-added tax and after eliminating sales within the Group.

When assessing revenue recognition aganst IFRS 15, the Group assesses the contract against the five steps of IFRS 15
1. Identity the contract with a customer.

2. l[dentify the parformance cbligations.

3. Determine the transaction price.

4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations.

5. Recognise revenue when/as performance obkgahons are sabisfied,
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies continues

Revenue recognition continued

Tris process includes the assessiment of the performance obligations within the contract and the allocation of contract revenue
across these performance obligations once identified. Revenue is recogrised either ar a point in time or over time, when, or as.
tre Group satishes performance obligations by transferring the promised goods or services to its customers, Revenua is based
on therr relative stand-alone seliing prices and recegnised as follows:

(a) Outright sale of equipment
Revenue from the outnight sale of equipment is recognised upon delivery to the customer.

{b) Service

Revenus from the servicing of equipment is recognised when the service has been performead.

{c) Maintenance

Revenue from the provision of maintenance services is recognized over the term of the maintenance contract on a pro rata
basis with the unexpired portion held in deferred iIncome.

{d) Installation

Revenue includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variations in contract work. As soon as the outcome of the
contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue 1s recognised in the Income Statement in proportion to the stage of completion
of the contract. Revenue for contract variations are included in the estimate of the transaction price if it is highly probably that

a significant reversal will not cccur. Contract expenses are recognised as incurred unless they create an asset related to future
contract activity. An expected loss on a contract is recagnised immediately in the Income Statement. in practice most installations
are divided into smaller short-term cortracts by the customer. Therefore, revenue is recognised at a peint in time as each
contract is completed. The Group does not enter into long-term construction contracts.

(e} Equipment rental

Hevenue from the equipment leased to customers under an operating lease is recognisad over the term of the lease, typcally
five years, on a pro rata basis, with the unexpired portion held in deferred income. Ali contracts are cancellable.

The Group recogrises contract liabilities for consideration received in respect of unsatisfied performance obligations and
reporis these amounts as deferred income in the Statement of Financial Position (see note 18 for opening and closing deferred
income baiances). For 2019, revenue includes £2,672.000 (2018: £2,685,000) included in the contract liability balance at the
begmning of the period. No revenue has been recognised (2018 ENil} from performance obligations satisfied in previous
periods due to a change in transaction price.

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services over time and at a point in tme n the revenue streams
previcusly identified.

Cutnght saie Service Maintenance Rental Enstailabon Total
2019 £oce £000 £'000 £°000 £ 000 £ 000
Timing of recognition:
At a point in time 94,803 34,233 - - 9,380 138,416
Over time —_ - 4,055 4,449 — 8,504
Total revenus 92,575 35,904 4,354 4,598 9,489 146,920
Jargrtae Jervcs Mainizeance Sert instailancn o
P R Toon G £ 000 L2060 e
Timing of recognition:
At a point in time 86.537 33.662 — — 8.99% 122.098
Over time - — 4,183 4,430 — 8,613
Total revenue 86.537 33,562 4183 4,430 8,99¢ 137,711
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2019

2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Revenue recognition continued

Although the Directors have concluded that there is ong gecgraphic segmentin which the Group operates the revenue can be
analysed across the following countries:

2019

£000
United Kingdom 32,328 29.127
Belgum 55,780 53,414
Netherands 35,303 34.794
Austria 18,649 16,865
Rest of Europe 4,860 3511

146,520 137,711

Cost of sales

Cost of sales includes direct material costs net of supplier rebates. Cther direct costs, largely dirsct labour. of £53.5 million
{(2018: £52.2 million) are included within distribution costs.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Parent Company's shareholders is recognised as a liabifity in the Group's financial statements when
paid in the case of interm dividends or in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Parent Company's shareholders
in the case of final dividends.

3 Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Board considers the Group has exposure to the following risks: foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and capital risk.
Risk management is carried out under treasury policies and guidelines authorised and reviewed by the Board of Directors.
This nate presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks, the Group's objectives, policies and
processes for measuring and managing risk and the Group’s management of capital. The Board has also considered the
Group's exposure to credit risk and liquidity risk.

Credit risk - the Group's trade receivables consist of a large number of customers spread across diverse industries and
geographical locations. The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single custorner, As a result the
Board has concluded that the carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements. which is net of
impairment losses, represents the Group's maximum axposura to credit risk,

Liquidity risk — the Group manages hquidity risk by maintaining adeguate cash reserves. which at 31 December 2018 amounted
to £27,143,000 (20138: £28,110.000), by operating within its agreed banking facilities, by continually monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows. by matching the matunity profiles of monetary assets and liabiliies and by momitering and discussing 1ts covenants
with its banks. The Group's bank loans at 31 Decemibier amounted to £7,170.000 (2018: £9,566.000; and their maturity is analysed
in detail in note 20. In view of the significant level of net funds available to the Group of £19,873.000 (2018: £16,544,000). the
Board has conciuded that it has minimal exposura to liguidity risk,

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has certain investments in foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed to foraign currency translaton risk,
Currency exposure ansing frem the net assets of the Group's foreign operations is managed primarily through borrowings
denominated in the relevant foreign currencies.
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3 Financial risk management continued
Financial risk factors continued
{a) Foreign exchange risk continued

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk s as follows. This s based on the carrying amount for monetary financial
instruments except for denvatives, when it is based on notional amounts,

Sterting Euro Tatat

31 December 2019 £000 £'000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 4,831 22,312 27,143
Trade and other recevables 6,546 21,276 27,822
Bank ioans (2,169} {5,001) (7,170}
Trade and other payables {6,434) {16,633) (23,0867}
Income tax liahilites (182) {803} (985}
Balance sheet exposure 2,582 21,151 23,743
"ol

3% Cecembear 2012 Sa0e
Cash and cash equivalents 5.928 20.182 26.110
Trade and other receivables 6,430 22.302 28,732
Bank loans (2.788) (6.778) (9.566)
Trade and other payables {5,939} {16,774y (22,713}
Income tax ilabilities 347} (1.384) (1.731)
Balance sheet exposure 3.284 17.548 20.832

A 5% weakening of the Euro against Sterling at 31 December 2019 would have decreased equity and profit or loss by
£1.032,000 (2018; £900.000). This calculation assumes that the change cccurred at the Statement of Financial Position date
and had been applied to nsk exposures existing at that date. A 5% strengthening of the Euro against Sterling at 31 December
2019 would have had the equal but opposite effect, on the basis that all other variables remain constant,

(b) Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate rigk arises from long-term borrowings. These borrowings were 1ssued at variable rates based
on EURIBOR and LIBOR and did expcse the Group to cash flow interast rate risk.

The Group manages its cash flow intersst rate risk by entering into Interest capping agreaments. The effect of these
agreements is to fix the Group’s exposure 10 EURIBOR to 0.25% and LIBOR to 1.50%. The agreements took effect

from May 2018 and provide interest rate cover untl the loans are repaid in May 2023,

(c) Capital risk

The Group’s objective in managing capital is to mantain a strong capital base to support current operations and planned
growth and to provide for an appropriate level of dividend payment {6 shareholders.

The Group 15 not subject to external regulatory capital requirements.

219
Total caital £060

Total cash and cash eguivalents 27,143 26,110
Less: orrowings (7,170) (9.566)
Net funds 19,973 16.544
Total equity 116,174 111,712
Total capital 136,147 128,256
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2019

4 Significant accounting estimates and judgements

Estumates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors. including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Significant estimates

The Group makes estimates and assurmptions concermning the future. The resulting estimates will. by definition, seldom equal
the reiated actual resuls. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a matenal adjustment to the
carrying value of assets and liahilities within the next financial year are discusserd below.

{@) Carrying value of goodwill and service contracts and accounting for business combinations

The Group tests annually whether the carrying vatue of goodwill has suffered any mpairment, i accordance with 1ts accounting
policy. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have peen determined based on value-in-use calculations. which includes
estimation uncertainty in relation to the assumptions about future operating resuits and determination of a suitabte discount rate.

The value-in-use calculations have used pre-tax cash flow projections based on the budget for the ysar ending 31 December 2020
and are extrapolated using an estimated growth rate of 195 reflacting the mature nature of the market in which the cash-generating
units operate. The cash flows have then been discounted using a pre-tax rate of 10% (2018:10%). The CGUs in different European
countries operate under similar economic and pelitical conditions with no different significant risks associated with any particular
area and no exchange control risks. in addition, the nature of products, servicas, production and distribution is consistent
across the region. Accordingly. the Directors have concluded that a single discount rate is appropriate to discount future cash
flows. The value-in-use calculations did not indicate impairment in any goodwill. If the discount rate had been 5% higher there
would still have been no impairment in any goodwill. In raspect of business combinations. the Directors have identified that service
contracts should be capitalised separately from goodwill. The Group use valuation techniques when determining the fair value
of the service contracts. which includes estimates at the time of acquisition in relation to future cash flows and discount rates.
Further detaifs in relation to the business combinations are set cut in note 27 to the financial statements.

{b) Pension scheme assumptions and mertality tables

The carrying value of the defined benefit pension scheme is valued using actuanal valuatons. These valuations are based on
assumptions including the selection of the most appropriate mortality table for the profiie of the members in the scheme and
the financial assurmptions concerning discount rates and inflation. All these are estirnates of future events and are therefore
uncertain. The choices are based on advice received from the scheme's actuaries which is checked from time to time with
benchmark surveys. The sensitivity of thesse assumptions is discussed in note 21 Retrermnent benefit obligations.

Significant judgements

In the course of preparing the financial statements, significant judgements have been made in determining whether the Group
financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis, Further details are set out in the basis of preparation section
in note 2 to the financiai statements.

5 Employee benefit expense

2019 s
£'000 o
Wages and salaries 48,645 44,622
Sccial secunty costs 10,215 9,782
Cther pension costs (note 21) 2,145 1,862

61,005 56,266

Directors’ remuneration is reported within audited sections of the Directers” Remuneration Report on page 13 under the heading
“Directors’ remuneration (audited)”.

The average monthly number of persons employed by the Group (ncluding Directors) during the year was as follows:

2019 HBE

Number s e

Production 46 46
Administration and management 1,191 1,145
Total 1,237 1,11
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6 Finance income and costs

2019 LM
£°a00 ERVEE
Finance income
Barik interesl recemable 27 12
Expacted return on pension scheme assets 'note 211 115 106
Farr value of dervative financial instruments - 13
Total finance income 142 131
Finance costs
Bark lcans, cverdrafts and other loans repayable within five years (142) (123
Amortisation of loan arrangement fees (18} (27)
Fair value of derivative financial Instruments (6) -
Interest on lease liabilties (64) —
interest on pension scheme liabilities (note 21 (24 {21)
Total finance costs (254) (171
Net finance costs (112} {40)
7 Profit before income tax
Profit before income tax is stated after charging/{crediting):
2019
£'000
Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment 3,305
Depreciation of right of use assets 1,716 —
Amartisation of intangible fixed assets 3,328 3,386
Profit on disposal of plant and equipment (59) (98}
Hire charges under operating leases:
- land and buildings - 639
- other — 735
Services provided by the Group’s external auditors and network firms
During the year. the Group (including its overseas subsidiaries; obtained the following services from the Group's audtors
as detailed below:
2019 Lrg
£000 Ry
Audit services
Fees payable to the Parent Company’s auditors for the audit of the Group’s annual accounts 92 19
Fees payable to the Parent Company's auditors and its network firms for other services:
- the audit of the Parent Company’'s subsidiaries pursuant to tegislation 229 218
321 237

The fees paid in respect of 2013 were to PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP. The fees paid in respect of 2019 were to

Grant Thorntory UK LLF.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2019

8 Income tax expense

2019
£'000
United Kingdom
Corporation tax 478 469
478 4659
Foreign tax
Corporation taxes 6,931 5.704
Total current tax 7,409 7AT3
Deferred tax
Crigination and reversal of temporary differences representing:
- United Kingdom tax {263) (295)
- foraign tax 83 (255}
Total deferred tax (note 19) {180) (550
Total tax charge 7,229 6,625

The tax for the year is higher (2018: higher) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the United Kingdom of 19.0%
{2018: 19.0%). The differences are explained below:

2019

£000
Profit on erdinary activities before taxaticn 24,042
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax in the United Kingdom of
19.0% (2018: 19.0%) 4,568 4,396
Effects of:
- expenses not deductible for tax purposes 401 379
- overseas tax rate in excess of UK standard 2,260 1,848
Total tax charge 7,229 5.623

The Group's effective income tax rate of 30.1% of cperating profit is expected to remain constant despite a reduction in the
UK’s main rate of corporation tax to 19.0%. This is because most of the expense is incurred in overseas jurisdictions which are
not affected by this reduction,

9 Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per ordinary share ("EPS") is based on the profit on ordinary activities after taxation of
£16.653.000 {2018: £18.399,000) and on 12.261,477 (2018: 12,261.477) ordinary shares, being the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in ssue during the year.

For diluted £PS, the weaighted average number of shares in issue is adjusted to assume conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares. There was no difference in the weighted average number of shares used for the calculation of basic and
diluted earnings per share as there are no potentially dilutive shares outstanding.

Fore

2019 Heslaiod — see  Gle 32
£'000 Penge iwa) Tence
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 16,653 135.8 16.399 133.7
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10 Dividends per share

2019 .
£°000 TEe
Equity — ordinary shares
Final paid £0.40 {2018. £0.40! per share 4,904 4.904
Interim paid £0.40 (2018: £0.40) per share 4,905 4,905

9,809 9.809

The Board is recommending the payment of a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 of
£0.20 per ordinary share (2013: £0.40).

11 Property, plant and equipment

Pl arg = JuIsner ﬁtf::;:rf:ﬁ
Ariad e sOLIprmeTt Total

~ 2 oo g
Cost
At 1 January 2018 10,144 4117 11,648 12.140 5176 43.225
Additions 112 228 346 2,335 478 3,499
Cn acquisitions of subsidhary undertakings — 14 - 163 29 206
Disposals — {25) (53} (1,667} (256) (1,901}
Exchange adjustment 59 35 109 115 44 362
At 1 January 2019 10,315 4,369 12,050 13,1886 5,471 45,391
Additions 22 275 322 2,776 579 3,974
On acquisitions of subsichary undertakings — 77 - 70 8 153
Disposals - (383) {59 {1,525} (821) (2,768)
Exchange adjustment 341} (1913 622) {592; (233} {1,979
At 31 December 2019 9,996 4,167 11,691 13,8156 5,002 44,771
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2018 5,180 3.347 10,961 6,676 4,462 31,636
Disposals — (25} 49 (1,272} (255) {1,801
Charge for the year 150 178 290 2014 364 2,996
Exchange adjustmant 48 31 102 65 37 283
At 1 January 2019 6.388 3.531 11.304 7.483 4.608 33.314
Disposals — (361; (55; 1,293) (791} {2,500)
Charge for the year 148 249 293 2.209 408 3,305
Exchange adjustment (275) {156} (582) {296} (203} {1,512)
At 31 December 2019 6,261 3,263 10,960 8,103 4,020 32,607
Net book amount
At 31 December 2019 3,735 904 731 5,812 982 12,164
Al 31 December 2018 3.927 838 746 5,703 863 12,077
At 31 December 2017 3,954 770 687 5,464 714 11.589

Depreciation and profit/loss on disposal have been charged to the Income Statement through administrative expenses,
Freshold land 18 not depreciated.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2019

11 Property, plant and equipment continued
Afthougn the DOirectors have concluded that there ‘s one gecgraphc segment in which the Group cperates the nat book
amourt car be analysed across the following countries:

2019 R

£°000 BERE
United Kingdom 3,490 3.568
Belgium 5,370 5,367
Netherlands 2,223 2.030
Austria 921 983
Rest of Europe 160 59

12,164 12,007

12 Right of use assets

Aot

PEe Totul
oo £30C
At 1 January 2019, recognised on adoption of IFRS 16 1,289 1,248 2,537
Additions 1.016 604 1,620
Dispesals 472} (11 (583}
Exchange differences (35) - (35}
At 31 December 2019 1,798 1,741 3,539
Accumulated depreciation
AL 1 January 2015 — — _
Disposals (A17) {111 (528}
Charge for the year 977 739 1,716
Exchange differences i9) — (S
At 31 December 2018 551 628 1,179

Net book amount
At 31 December 2019 1,247 1,113 2,360
At 31 December 2018 — — —

Depreciation has been charged to the Income Statement through administrative expenses.
Interest charged on lease liabities of £64,000 1s included within finance costs.

Of the net book amount, £1,368,000 15 n respect of assets in the United Kingdom. The remaining £992,000 is spread
throughout other European countries in which the Group has operations.
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13 intangible assets
el AL al

ER L ot

Cost

AL January 2018 {restated — see note 32} 63,686 29.573 1,494 2,208 101 968

Additions — 557 g2 46 695

On acquisitons of subsidiary undertakings (restated — see note 32) 2.019 3,098 — — 5117

Exchange differences 212 156 9 21 388

AL 1 January 2019 (restated — see note 32) 70.917 33.390 1,585 2.276 108.178

Additions 19 1,784 171 94 2,068

On acquisitions of subsidiary undertakings (note 27) 854 2,309 — — 3.263

Disposals - - {199} (32) (231}
Exchange differences {1,215} (969) (77} (165} (2,426}
At 31 December 2019 70,675 36,514 1,490 2,173 110,852

Accumulated amortisation

At 1 January 2018 17,126 18.096 1,209 1,958 38.390

Charge for the year — 3,092 169 125 3,386
Exchange differences 189 107 9 20 325
At 1 January 2019 17.315 21,285 1,387 2,104 42.101

Disposals — — (199) (2} (201}
Charge for the year - 3,134 131 3 3.328
Exchange differences {1.093) B11} 67} (109} {1,880y
At 31 December 2019 16,222 23,818 1,252 2,056 43,348
Net booik amount

At 31 December 2019 54,453 12,696 238 117 67,504
At 31 December 2018 (restated - see note 32} 53,602 12,095 208 172 68,077

At 31 December 2017 {restated — see note 32} 51,5660 11,483 285 260 63.573

Amortisation has been charged to the Income Statement trrough administrative expenses. Additions are discussed 1n further
detall in note 27.

Impairment tests for goodwill and service contracts

The recoverable amount of goocdwill and service contracts is determinad basad on value-in-use calculations for sach
cash-generating unit ("CGU"). The value-in-use calculations have used pre-tax cash flow projections based on the budget

for the year ending 31 December 2020, Subsequent cash flows are extrapolated using an estimated growth rate of 1% (2018: 1%
reflacting the mature nature of the market in which the CGUs operate. The cash flows have then been discounted using

a pre-tax rate of 10% {2018: 10%;. The CGUs in different European countries operate under simiar economic and poiitical
conditions with no different significant risks associated with any particular area and no exchange control risks. In addition.

the nature of products. services, production and distribution is consistent across the region. Accordingly, the Directors
have concluded that a single discount rate 1s appropriate to discount future cash flows. The value-in-use calculations did not
indicate iImparrment in any goodwilt or service contract. if the discount rate had been 5% higher there would still have beenr
no impairment 0 any goodwill. The value of goodwill is split into four CGUs to assess indicators of impainment. Of the total
goodwill £40.593.000 {2018: £40,633,000) relates to Ansul Group companies (based in Belgium, Austria and the Netherands!.
£12,924,000 (2018: £12,030.000) relates to the integrated UK comparyes and the balance relates to the remaining CGUs which
ars individually considered insignificant. Of the tolal service contracts £5.271,00012018: £6.294,000) relates to Ansul Group
compan:es (hased in Belgium, Austria and the Netherlands), £4.935 000 (2018: £3,937,000) relates to the integrated UK
companies and the balance refates to the remamning CGUs which are individually considered insignificant.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2019

14 Derivative financial instruments

2019 La
Assets Liabities
£1000 E'Q00
Interest rate agreements — 47 — 41

The Group has entered into interest rate agreements capping LIBOR at 1.50% and EURIBCR at §.25%;. The agreernents took
effect from May 2018 and remain in effect until the loans are repaid in 2023. The lability represents the forecast increase in
interest payable as a result of these agreements over the remaining life of the loans at the ysar end. The far value at the year
end 15 calculated based on observable interest rates.

15 Inventories

2019 2015
£:000 e
Raw materials and consumables 5,988 4,303
Work in progress 500 6868
Finished goods 6,946 7,822

13,434 13,293

The cost of inventories recogrised as an expense and included in cost of sales amounted to £34,066,000 (2018: £30,212,600).
No (2018: £Nif) previous inventory write downs have been reversed.

16 Trade and other receivables

2019 2072

£'000 Loou
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade receivables 26,419 26,646
Less: expected credit loss allowance {1,619) (1,562)
Trade receivables — net 24,800 25,084
Amounts owed by related undertakings 31 31
Other receivables 941 1,115
Prepayments 1,662 1.569
Income tax recoverable 388 933

27,822 28,732

Amounts owed by related undertakings do not attract interest, no security is held in respect of these balances and they are
repayable on demand.

In line with our frade recevables accounting policy. the Group apphes the IFRS @ simplified model of recognising lifetime
expected credit losses for all trade recewvables as these items do not have a significant financing component. In measuring
expected credit losses. the trade receivables have been assessed on a collective basis as they possess shared credit nsk
characteristics. They have been grouped in months past due. Cn this basis the expected credit loss for trade receivables
was determined as follows:

31 December 2019 Trade receivables

Up to Over
Curreat 3 months 3 to 6 months & months Total

Expected credit loss rate 0.1% 1.1% 5.8% 100.0%
Gross carrying amount 15,825 7,056 2,027 1,411 26,419
Lifetime expectad credit loss 14 76 118 1,411 1,619
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16 Trade and other receivables contirued
31 December 2018 Trade receivables

[IRESE A Shocerrs 3Tl s Ll
Expected credi foss rate 0.2% 6.7% 94 5%
Gross carrying amount 16,010 2,238 1,299 26.646
Lifetime expected credit joss 34 150 1,227 1.562

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and cther receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

2019 9k
£000 oo
Steriing 6,546 5430
Euro 21,276 22,302
Total 27,822 28,732

These are detailed as Sterling equivalent.

The adoption of IFR3S 3 has not had a material impact on the Group. Movements in the Group provision for expected credit loss
allowance are as follows:

2019 2098

£'000 £ a0

At 1 January 1,562 1,776
Increase in loss allowance recognised in the year 706 583
Receivables written off in the year as uncollectable (285) (221)
Unused amounts reversed (364) (576)
At 31 December 1,618 1.562

The craation and release of the expected credit loss allowance for receivables has been included in administrative expenses

inn the Income Statement. Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there is no expectation of
recovering additonad cash. The other classes within trade and other recevabies do not contain impared assets. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned above.

The carrying value of trade and cther receivables approximates {o fair value.

The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

17 Cash and cash equivalents

2019 2013
£'000 € e
Cash at bank and in hand 27,143 26.110

The carrying value of cash at bank and in hand represents its fair value due to its short maturity.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2019

18 Trade and other payables

2019

£'000 ALK
Current
Trade payables 3,515 4.053
Other payabiles 2,752 2,871
Other taxation ana social security 11,703 11,226
Accruals 2,465 1,891
Deferred income 2,723 2,672
23,158 22,713
2019 2013
£'000 006G
Non-current
Other payables 850 922
19 Deferred income tax
Angurt Amoun:
ISCOgNMSEE DIOwgd LWrIECogn sed
2018
Restztea -
2079 Shee NI 22 2019 2018
£7000 [P £'0G0 S0
Deferred tax asset
Pension deficit 554 470 - —
Decelerated capital allowances 129 341 - -
Unrecoverable losses - — 971 a71
683 811 971 g71
Deferred tax liabilities
Pension surplus (1,737) (1.552) - -
intangible assets (943) {881) - —
Accelerated capiial allowances (229} {348) — —
(2,909) (2.779) - —
Net deferred tax liability {2,226) (1,968) 971 971

@ Londan Security ple Annual Report and Accounts 2019



19 Deferred income tax continuad

31 Dacember

—entaled - Tt

Tef Ol S0 2019
DA £C00
Non-current assets

Pension deficit 470 153 - (19 554
Property, plant and equiprent 341 - - (212} 129
811 103 — (231} 683

Non-current liabilities
Pensicn surplus {1,552} {1.25¢ {40 (1,737}
Intangible assets (881) — 1392) 330 {943}
Property, plant and equipment {346) [E] — 121 {229}
2,779 {149 {392) 411 {2,909}
Net deferred tax liability (1.968) (46} {392) 180 {2,226}

Deferred tax is measured on & non-discountad basis at the tax rates that are expected o apply ¢ the penods in which temporary
differences will reverse, based on tax rates and laws substantively enacted at the Statement of Financial Position date applicable
to the unisdiction in which the asset-liability is recognised, it is not anticipated that any of the deferred fax asset or liability in
respect of the pension deficit or surplus will reverse in the 12 months following the Statement of Financial Position date. Whilst

it is anticipated that an element of the remaining deferred tax assets and liabilities wilt reverse during the 12 months following
the Statement of Financial Position date, any such reversal is not expected to be matenal.

20 Borrowings

2019 2014
£'000 0o
Non-current {more than one year but less than five years)
Bank borrowings:
— i one 1o two years 2,048 2125
— betwsen two and five years 3,074 5,316
5,122 7,441
Current {one year or less or on demand)
Bank borrowings 2,048 2,125
Total borrowings 7170 9,566

The carrying value of borrowings approxmates to its fair value.

Interest rates (ncluding the bank’s margin} on the bank loans in existence during the year averagad 1.5% (2018: 1.7%) per
annum. Bank lcans are stated net of unamertised finance arrangement costs of £61.000 (2018: £79.000). of which £43.000
(2018: £61.000) is to be amortised after more than one year.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2019

20 Borrowings continued

The table below analyses the Group's financial iaGiites including interest wrich will be settied on a net basis into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash fiows which have been calculated using spot rates at the relevant
balance sheet date.

2019
Trangalbmarar y arih o0o
Bank borrowings:
—within cne year 2,155 2,264
—in cne to two years 2,126 2,235
— between two andg five years 3,136 5459

7,417 9,958

The estimated fair value of the interest rate agreement has been included in the Statement of Financial Position as disclosed
in note 14,

The borrowings are secured by fixed and floating charges on certain assets of the Group.

The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings, ali of which are floating rate financial liabllites. are denominated in the
following currencies:

Weighted P ]
average 3.8 3Gk
Total interest EEF sterel
2019 rate afe
£000 2019 paAri-)

Currency
Sterling 2,169 21% 2,788 2.3%
Eurc 5,001 1.3% 6.778 1.5%
7,170 1.5% 9.566 1.7%

21 Retirement benefit obligations
The Group operates a number of pension schemas. Details of the major schemes are set out below,

Nu-Swift International Pension Scheme

Nu-Swaft international Limited operates a funded defined benefit pension scheme, which was closed to new entrants wath
effect frem 1 December 2002 and to further accrual on 30 June 2007, providing benefits based on final pensionable earnings,
The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group, being invested with Legal and General Investment
Management. The total pension cost of the Group is determined by an independent gualified actuary on the basis of triennial
valuations using the projected unit method. The most recent actuariat valuation as at 31 December 2017 showed that the market
value of the scheme’s assets was £17.909.000 and that the actuarial value of thcse assets represented 118% of the benefits that
had accrued to members. The resuits of the 2017 valuation have been projected to 31 December 2019 and then recalculated
using the assumptions set out below which result in a net surplus position of £4,959,000 (2018: £4,430.000). The scheme's
assets are stated at their market vailue at 31 December 2010,

At 31 Decermber 2019 the scheme had a net defined benefit surplus calculated in accordance with 1AS 18 using the
assumptions set out of £4,959.000 (2018: £4.430,000). The surplus is recognised as it is confirmed that the Group does have
an unconditional right to a refund of surplus contributions once all pensions have been applied and the scheme winds up.

On this basis no liability for minimum funding requirements has been recognised.

The Group pad no contributions to the scheme (2018 ENIE over the year. No further contributions were payaizle with effect
from 1 May 2015, These payments had been in respect of the recovery plan put in place following the completion of the
2011 valuation.
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21 Retirement benefit obligations continued
Nu-Swift International Pension Scheme continued
The financial assumptions used to calculate the liabilities of the scheme under IAS 19 are

2019 Zutd EAAN
Discount rate 1.80% 2.60% 2.40%
Inflation rate 2.30-3.20% 2.50-3.50% 2.40-3.40%
Salary increase rate nfa n/a na
Increases for pensions in payment 3.10% 3.40% 3.30%
Revaluation of deferred pensions 2.30% 2.50% 2.40%

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set based on advice, published statistics and experience in each territory.
The average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 65 at the Statement of Financial Position date is as follows:

2019 203
Male 21.3 218
Female 23.2 23.7

The average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 65. 20 years after the Statement of Financial Positicn date.
is as follows:

2019 2018
Male 22.3 228
Female 24.4 24.9

The assets in the scheme were:

Value at Percantage
21 December of scheme
2019 assets
£'000 2019
Equities e 0.0%
Bonds 15,957 87.0%
Cash 2,385 13.0%
18,342
Present value of the scheme’s liabilities {13,383)
Surplus in the Nu-Swift Scheme recognised in the Statement of Financiai Position 4,959
Related deferred tax liability {1,737)
Analysis of the amount recognised in the Income Statement
2019 2012
£000 e ste]
Past service charge reiating to GMP equalisation - 89
Interest credit {115} (106}
Total operating credit {115} (7)
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Notes to the financial statements continued
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21 Retirement benefit obligations contnued
Movement in the defined benefit obligation over the year

2019 JRERE)

£'600 <ol
Start of the year (12,773) 013477y
Past service charge - 89
interest cost (325) (316
Actuarial {loss)y/gain ansing from changes in financial assumptions (1,230) 415
Actuanial gain ansing from changes in demographic assumptions 367 a5
Benefits paid 578 599
End of the year (13,383) (12.773)

Movement in the fair value of the plan assets over the year
2013

E'000
Start of the year 17,203
Interest income 440
Return on assets {excluding amount included in net interest expense) 1,277
Benefits paid {578) {599)
End of the year 18,342 17,203
Analysis of the amount recognised in the Consoclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
29 2018
£000 e
Actuartal {ioss)/gain on defined benefit obligation {863) 510
Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets 1,277 {494)
Gain recognised in the Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 414 16

Sensitivity of the liability value to changes in the principal assumptions

Prior to the effect of deferred tax. the impact of a 0.1% decrease in the infiation rate would be to mcrease the pension surplus
by £47,000 (2018: £45,000) an increase of .15 in the inflation rate would decrease the surplus by £48,000 {2018: £41.000).
The impact of a 0.1% increase in the discount rate wouid be 1o increase the pension surplus by £171.000 (2018: £162,000);
a decrease of 0.1% in the discount rate would decrease the surplus by £174,000 (2018: £165,0C0).

Ansul Pension Scheme

Ansul S.A. cperates a number of funded pansion schemes, the majority of which are prescribed by the Belgian state. included
within these is a funded pension scheme for which the majority of the Belgian employees are eligible, providing benefits based
on final pensicnable earnings. The assets of the scheme are held separately from these of the Ansul Group. being invested with
Delta Lioyd Life. The total pensicn cost of the Ansul Group scheme is determined by an independent qualified actuary. The most
recent valuation was at 31 December 2017. The scheme's assets are stated at their market value at 31 December 2019.

The Group paid contributions 1o the scheme amounting to £246,000 (2018 £231,000) over the year. There are no minimum
contribution reguirements for this scheme.

The financial assumptions used to calculate liabilties of the schemes under 1AS 19 are:

2019 ERE 2t/
Discount rate 0.88% 1.88% 1.58%
Inflation rate 2.00% 2.00% 1.60%
Salary increase rate 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
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21 Retirement benefit obligations continued
Ansul Pension Scheme continued

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set based on advice. published statistics and experience in each territory
The average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 65 at the Statement of Financial Position date is as follows:

2019 2ot
Male 21.9 21.9
Female 25.3 255

The average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retinng at age 65, 20 years after the Statement of Financial Position date.

1s as follows
209 25
Male 22.0 22.0
Female 25.4 26.4
The assets in the scheme were:
Value at Percentage value 3t
31 December of scheme 3 Decamper
2019 assets 3
£'000 2019 Bveg
Assets with guaranteed interest with insurer 2,371 100% 2.329
Present value of the scheme's iabllities (4,586) {4,209}
Deficit in the Ansul scheme recognised in the Statement of Financial Position (2,215) {1,880)
Related deferred tax asset 554 470
Analysis of the amount recognised in the Income Statement
2019 V)
£'000 g ¥
Current service charge 4 (22}
Interest charge 23 21
Total operating charge/(credit) 19 {1)
Movement in the defined benefit obligation over the year
2019
£'000
Start of the year (4,209) (3.873)
Current service cost {242) {209
Interest cost {70} (56)
Actuarial {loss)/gain arsing from changes in financial assumptions {549) 81
Agctuarial gain‘(loss) ansing from changes in demographic assumptions 21 {288)
Benefits paid 239 188
Exchange movement 224 (54)
End of the year (4,586) {4.209
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21 Retirement benefit obligations continued
Movement in the fair value of the plan assets over the year

2019 ELNA-Y

£000 RS
Start of the year 2,329 2,152
Return on assats 47 35
Actuaral gain {loss) 63 {(13)
Empioyer contribut.ons 246 231
Benefits paid (187) {98;
Exchange movements {127) 22
End of the year 2,371 2.328
Analysis of the amount recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

2019 ELEY

£'000 Coen
Actuat return less expecled return on pension scheme assets {412) {145)
Actuarial loss recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 412 (145)

Sensitivity of the liability value to changes in the principal assumptions

Prior to the effect of deferred tax, the impact of a 0.1% increase in the inflation rate would be to increase the pension deficit
by £24.000 (2018 £20,000), a decrease of 0.1% in the inflation rate would decrease the deficit by £23.000 {2018: £19.000).
The impact of a 0.1% increase in the discount rate would be to decrease the pension deficit by £70,000 (2G18; £54.000),

a decrease of 0.1% in the discount rate would increase the deficit by £79,000 (2018 £60.000).

UK stakeholder scheme
The centributions paid by the Group to the defined contribution stakeholder pension schamaes 1n operation within the UK
amounted to £532,000 in the year ended 31 Decemper 2019 {2018 £333.000).

Total pension costs charged 1o the Income Statement for all schemes in which the Group participates amounted to £2,166,000
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2018: £1,862,000) and were wholly recognised in administrative expenses,

22 Provisions for liabilities and charges

O oarom FOP L FiEnT

T nmantal

Provision at 1 January 2019 5 181 186
Movement in the year (5} (12 (17
Provision at 31 December 2019 — 168 169

The rectification provision relates to after sales costs. The environmental provision relates to costs associated with sol contamination.
The cost of the decontamination is expected to be spread cver a number of years and the provision is based on quotes received
from contractors. The impact of discounting is considered immaterial to the amounts provided.

23 Called up share capital

2019 2019 Zus o)
Number £'000 A oY B
Authorised
Ordinary shares of 1p each 67,539,188 675 67,539,188 675
Aliotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 1p each 12,261,477 123 12.261,477 123

There are no cutstanding options at 31 December 2019,

The mid-market price of the Company's shares at 31 December 2019 was £21.80 and tne range durng the year was £18.680 to £24.50,
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23 Called up share capital continued
Share premium account

At 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 344
Capital redemption reserve

B vi9)
At 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 1
The capital redemption reserve has ansen following the purchase of own shares.
Non-controlling interest

S
At 1 January 2019 302
Profit in the year attributable to non-controlling interest 160
Distribution to non-contrelling interest (113
At 31 December 2019 349

The non-controlling interest has ansen following the acguisition of 75% of the share capital of Fire Industry Specialists Limited.

24 Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated from operations

2019

£'000
Qperating profit 24,154
Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment 3,305
Depreciation of right of use assets 1,716 -
Amartisation of intangible assets 3,328 3.386
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (59) {98}
LLess on disposal of intangible assets 3 —
Exchange differences 36 185
Difference between pension charge and cash contributions 3 72
Decrease(increase) in trade and other receivables 1,124 {560}
{Decreaselincrease in trade and other payables (1,268) 565
Decrease in provisions (24} 2y
Increase in inventories i) 11,334)

Cash generated from cperations

32,363 28,385

Disposal of property, plant and equipment

2019 203

£'Q00 C000
Net book value 270 300
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 59 a8
Proceeds 329 398
Disposal of intangible assets

2019 2018

£'000 Loy
Net book value 31 —
Loss on disposat of property, plant and equipment (31) -

Proceeds
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25 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

o

PRV Ty T
1 January 2019 7.441 2,125 — 9.566
Adoption of IFRS 16 — — 2537 2,537
Revised 1 January 2019 7.441 2,125 2.537 12.103
Cash flowe:
- repayment — 2.091) {1.750) (3.841)
Non-cash items (2.31: 2.014 — (305)
New lease liabilities — - 1,603 1,603
31 December 2019 5,122 2,048 2,390 9,560

Non-cash items refate {o foreign exchange movements, amortisation of finance arrangement costs and the movement between
current and non-current debt in the year.

26 Lease liabilities

The Group leases various properties and vehicles under non-canceliable operating lease agreemeants, The lease agreements are
between one and five years and the majority of lease agreements ars renewable at the end of the lease period at market rates.

Following adoption of iFRS 16 the lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date, discounted using the Group's incremental borrowing rate.

Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows

2019

£'060

Within cne year 1,170

Between two and five years inciusive 1,176

More than five years 117

Total undiscounted lease liabilities at 31 December 2,463
Lease liabilities included in Statement of Financial Position at 31 December

2019

€000

Gurrent 1,134

Non-current 1,256

2,390

The Group has not disclosed comparative information, because it has appliea the modified retrospective approach, without
restating comparative informaten on transition to IFRS 16,

in the comparative period assets held under operating leases wera not recognised in the Group's Statemeant of Financiai Position.
Payments made under operating leases waere recognised in the Income Statement on a straight line basis over the term of the lease,

The aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable cperating leases were as follows:

213

£ 000

Within one year 1,347
Between two and five years inclusive 1,255
More than five years 160
2.762
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27 Acquisitions

In May 2019 the Groug purchased the entire shara capital of KW Fire Protection Limited and KDN Fire Protection Limited
companies incorporated in, and which operates in, the United Kingdom. In August 2019 the Group purchased the entire issued
share capital of HP Fire Prevention Spri. a company incorporated in. and which operates in, Betgium, In Septermber 2019 the
Group purchased the entire share capital of Trafalgar Compliance Services Limited, Firex UK Limited and North Staffs Fire Limited,
companies incorporated in, and which operate in, the United Kingdom. In October 2019 the Group purchased the entire share
capital of Firabreak Fire Securities Limitad. S2 Firg Solutions Lirmited and AFS Fire and Security Limited. companies
incorporated in, and which cperate in, the United Kingdom.

As these acquisitions are individually considered immaterial to the Group, the disclosure of the book and provisional farr values
of net assets acquired is given in aggregate as follows:

Book value Fair vatue Total

2019 2012 2019 Totad

£ 000 £'000 £°000 R E

Property, plant and eguipment 153 — 153 206
Service contracts - 2,309 2,309 3,098
Inventories 130 — 130 210
Receivables 759 - 759 1,760
Cash and cash equivalents 441 — 441 320
Payables 781 — (781) {1,525)
Deferred tax liabilities - {392) (392) {528)
Fair value of net assets acquired 702 1,917 2,619 3,611
Goodwill - 954 954 2,019
Total consideration 702 2,871 3,573 5,630
Cash and cash equivalents acquired (441) {390)
Net consideration 3,132 5,240

Satisfied by:

Provistonal Proacicnal

consideration  covgidoraton

2019 1

£'000 e

Cash 2,264 4,274
Contingent consideration 868 66
Net consideration 3,132 5.240

The goodwill is attributable mainly to the skills and technical talent of the acquired companies’ workforces. The final consideration
payable is determined based on the performance of the acquired companies in their first year under Group ownership. The
criteria to measure performance are agreed with the vendors prior to acquisition. Based on the results of this comparison a
contingent payment is made. The disclosure above is based on the Group's best estimate of the level of contingent
consideration payable.
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27 Acquisitions continued

Tne revenue and net profit of KW Fire Protection Limitad since the acquistion date ncluded in the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2012 were £6801,000 and £1339.000 respectively. On a pro rata
basis the revenue and proft would have been expected to be £1.030,000 and £238,000 had the acguisitton taken place on
1 January 2019.

The revenue and net profit of HP Fire Prevention Sprl since tre acquisition dats included i the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2019 were £689,000 and £17,000 respectively. On a pro rata basis the
revenue and loss would have been expected to be £207.000 and £51.00C had the acquisstion taken place on 1 January 2019,

The revenue and net profit of S2 Fire Scluticns Limited since the acquisition date included in the Consobdated Statement of
Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2018 were £Nil and ©Nil respectively as there was minimal actwvity
between the date of acquisition and 31 December 2019. The revenue and profit would have bean expected o be £1.142.000
and £204.000 had the acguisition taken place on 1 January 2018,

The revenue and net profit of AFS Fire and Security Limited since the acquisition date includad in the Consclidatad Statement
of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2019 were NIl and £Nil respectively as there was mirmmal activity
between the date of acquisition and 31 December 2019. The revenue and profit would have been expected 1o be £461.000
and £75.000 had the acquisition taken place on t January 2019.

Due to the integration of KDN Fire Pratection Limited, Trafalgar Compliance Services Limited, Firex UK Limited, North Staffs
Fire Limited and Firebreak Fire Securities Limited, acquired during the year, into the existing businesses and operations, the
Directors are unable to determine the contribution of the acquisitions 1o the revenue and net profit of the Group for the year
ended 31 Decemper 2019 nor are they abie to determine what the impact on revenues and profit of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2013 would have been had the acquisitions taken place on 1 January 2019

tn addition to the acquisition of limited companies, the Group acquired service contracts from a number of businesses for

a total consideration of £2,309,000. The Directors considerad that the consideration equated to the fair value of the contracts
acqguired and have recognised an intangible asset accordingly. The Group monitars contract retention rates for any indication
of impairment.

Due to the integration of these service contracts acqguired durning the year inte the existing businesses and operations, the
Cirectors are unable to determine the contribution of the acquisitions to the revenue and net profit of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 nor are they able to determine what the impact on revenues and profit of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 would have been had the acquisitons taken place on 1 January 2019,

28 Group undertakings

The Group whoelly owns the entire issued and votng ordinary share capital of alt the subsidiaries isted with the exception of Fire
Industry Specialists Limited, which is 75% owned by LS UK Fire Group Limited and its wholly owned subsidiary Amberfire Limited.

ACtty

AFS Fire and Security Limited
Alarm Masters S.A.
All-Protec NV

ALPL sarl

Amberfire Limited

Ansul B.W.

Ansul Solutions B.V,

Ansul S.A.

Ansul Belgium SA

APS Spri

ASCO Extinguishers Company Limited
Braco B.V.B.A.

Beta Fire Protection Limited
Biesberger G.m.b.H.
Biusdesign B.V.

Boensma B.V.

Braho Brandpreventie B.V.

Fire protection
Fire protection
Fire protection
Fire protection
Fire protection
Fire protection
Fire protection
Fire protection
Fire protection
Fire protection
Fie protection
Fire protection
Fire protection
Fire protection
Fire protection
Fire protection
Fire protection

Belgium
Belgium
Luxembourg
Engiand

The Netherlands
The Netherlands
Belgium
Belgium
England
Scotland and England
Beigium
England

Austria

The Netherlands
The Netherlands
The Netherlands
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28 Group undertakings continued

Fae bty

cooig

G SIAar O
SO0 3LO

Brandpreventie Groep BV

Fire protection

The Netherlands

City Fire Protection and Maintenance Services LLP Fire protection England
DC Security BVB.A, intruder alarms Belgium
Dimex Technics S.A. Fire protection Belgium
Feuerschutz Hollmann G.m.b.H Fire protection Germany
Fire Industry Specialists Limited Fire protection England
Fire Protection Holdings Limited Sub-holding England
Florian Feuerschutz G.m.b.H. Fire protection Austna
GC Fire Protection Limited Fire protection England
GFA Premier Limited Fire protection England
Hoyles Limited Sub-holding England
Hoyles Fire & Safety Limited Fire protection England
HP Fire Prevention Spri Fire protection Belgium
importex S.A. Fire protection Belgium
KW Fire Protection Limited Fire protection England
Le Chimiste Sprl Fire protection Belgium
Linde Brandmateriel Aps Fire protection Denmark
LS UK Fire Group Limited Sub-holding England
Ludwag Brandschutztechnik G.m.b.H. Fire protection Germany
L. W. Safety Limited Fire protection England
NL Brandbeveiliging B.V. Fire protection The Netherlands
Noris Feuerschutzgerate G.m.b.H. Fire protection Austria
Nu-Swift (Engineering} Limited Fire protection England
Nu-Swift Brandbevelliging B.V. Fire protection The Netherlands
Nu-Swift International Limited Fire protection England
One Protect Sarl Fire protection France
PMP Manus G.m.b.H. Fire protection Austria
Pravent Brandbeveiliging B.V. Fire protection The Netherlands
Pyrotec Fire Protection Limited Fire protection England
Record Brandbeveiliging B.V. Fire protection The Netherlands
52 Fire Solutions Limited Fire protection England
Secunty Alarm Service Company Sprl Fire protection Belgium
Sormati FIE NV, Fire protection Belgium
Total Fire-Stop Gamnlb.H. Fire protection Austria
The General Fire Appliance Co. Limited Sub-holding England
Tunbridge Wells Fire Protection Limited Fire protection England
TVF (UK) Limitec FHre protection England

With the exception of the Parent Company’s 100% interest in Fire Protection Holdings Limited, the shares in the remaining
Group undertakings are heid by subsidiary undertakings. Addresses and contact details for these subsidiaries are given
inside the back cover. LS UK Fire Group Limited's and Fire Protection Holdings Limied's registered address is: Premier House,
2 Jubilee Way, Elland HX5 9DY.

I'he following subsidiaries have taken advantage of exemption from audit under Section 479a of the Companies Act 2006:

ASCO Extinguishers Company Limited, Beta Fire Protection Limited, Fire Protection Holdings Limited, GC Fire Protection
Limited, GFA Premier Limited, Hoyles Limited, KW Fire Protection Limited, LS UK Fire Group Limited. Premier Fire Limited.
Pyrotec Fire Protection Limited, The General Fire Appliance Co. Limited, Tunbridge Wells Fire Protection Eimited and TVF (UK) Limited.

Cowley Fire Lirmited, Fire Reliant Limited, L & P Fire Safety Equipmeant timited. Modern Frre Extinguisher Services Limited and
Triangle Fire Limited, all share the registered address: Premeer House, 2 Jubilee Way. Elland HX8 9DY. Ulysses Fire Services
Limited's registered address is: 56,69 Queen’'s Road. High Wycombe HP 13 8AH. 1st Quote Fire Limited's registered address is:
Unit 1.1. Festival Court, Brand Place, Glasgow G51 1DR.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2019

28 Group undertakings continuec

In order ta comply with the Companies, Parinerships and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regutations 2015 the Group is
no longar able to take advantage of Section 410 of the Companies Act 2006 to disclose only its principal subsidiaries in the
financial statements. Additicnal wholly ownea subsidiaries all of which are dormant. are:

BWH Manufacturing Limited. Graen Cross Uimited, KON Fire Protection Limited. LS Fire Group Limited  Premnier Fire Limited.
Pyrotec Fire Detection Uimited. North Staffs Fire Limited. Nu-Swift Limited. United Fire Alarms Limited and Wilts Fire Limited all
share the registered addrass: Prermier House, 2 Jubilee Way. Elland HXS QDY.

Assured Fire Protection & Safety Limited. Firebreak Fire Securities Limited and Swift-N-Sure {Fire Appllances: Limited all snare
the registered address: Unit 1.1, Festival Court, Brand Place. Glasgow G51 1DR.

MK Fire Limited, Thames Valley Fire Protection Limited. Trafalgar Compliance Services Limited. TVF Alarms Limited ard TVF
Systemns Services Limited all share the registered address: 56/69 Queen's Road, High Wycombe HP13 6AH.

Luke & Rutland Limited and Pyrotec Fire Detection Limited share the registered address: Caburn Enterprisa Park, Ringmer BNS SNP.,

Amberfire Limited and Firestop Services Limited share the registered address: Unit 15, Cedar Parc. Lincoin Road. Doddington.
Lincolnshire LN6 £RR.

All of these entities have been ncluded within the consclidation.

29 Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

The Parent Company regards ECI Fire SARL, a company registered in Luxembourg. as its ultimate parent undertaking through s
80% interest in London Security plc. The Directors regard the Eden and Ariane Trusts as the ultimate controlling parties through
their controlling interest in EOI Fire SARL and Tristar Fire Corp.

30 Related party transactions

During the year the Group incurred costs amounting to £783,344 {2018 £800,473) in respect of the Executive Directors
including the Head Office and other expenses under the Services Agreement referred to in the Directors' Remuneration Report.

The Group recharged and was reimbursed £86.000 {2018: £83,000) in relation to the Service Agreament by Andrews Sykes,
Andrews Sykes is related through commaon control.

The balance disclosed in note 16 as being due from relataed undertakings is with EFS Praperty Holdings Ltd.. a company
controlled by J.G. Murray. The amount outstanding at the year end relates entirely to transactions in the year.

The Group made sales to Andrews Sykes i refation to fire protection in the year of £10,015 (2018: £11.538).

The Group made sales to fire companies in Switzerland controlled by J.G. Murray in the year of £373.372 {2018; £292.920.
The Group made purchases from Fire industry Specialsts Limited in the year of £364,057 (2018: £312,465),

Fire Industry Specialists Limited paid a dividend in the year of £338,648 (2018 £Nil to LS UK Fire Group Limited.

The Group incurred £331,000 (2018: £335.000) of expenditure on behalf of J.G. Murray during the year. This amount was
reimbursed in the year (2018: £569,000 was outstanding at the year end).

The Group incurred £Ni1{2018: £5,000) of expenditure on behalf of J-J. Murray during the year.
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31 Post balance sheet events

Subsequent to the year end the Group has completed the acguisiior of further service contracts for a total of £1.034.000
2018: £1,473,000).

Covid-19

since 31 December 2019, the spread of Cowd-19 has severely impacted many local economiss around the globe with many
businesses being forced to cease or limit operations for fong or indefnite periods of time. Measuras taken to contain the spreaa
of the virus. inciuding trave! bans, guarantines, social distancing and closures of non-essential services. have triggered signdficant
disruptions to businesses worldwide. resulting in an economic slowdown. Global stock markets have also experenced great
volatifity and a significant weakening.

The Group has determined that these events are non-adjusting subsequent events. Accordingly, the financiat position and
results of operations as of and for the year ended 31 December 2019 have not been adjusted to reflect their impact.

The Group has followed the government advice in the countries in which the Group operates, which has resulted in reduced
revenues as not all engineers were able to visit customer premises and perform fire protection services. The Directors have
considered the areas of the balance sheet that could be impacted by Covid-19 as set out below and are not expecting any
material impact 1o those areas.

While there has been a general slow down in collection of trade receivables. the Group has not experienced any significant
customer bad debts since the pandemic was declared. The Directors have taken Covid-19 into account when deterrmining
whether the Group financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis. Further details are set out in the basis
of preparation section in note 2 to the financial statements.

The Group operates defined benefit pension schemes as disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements. The pension schame
assets do not include investments in equities and therefore the Directors have concluded that the impact of declining stock
markets does not have a significant impact on the valuation of the assets at the date of this report. The Directors have reviewed
the carrying value of the intangible assets recognisad in the Consclidated Statement of Financial Position and the investment
recorded in the Parent Company Balance Sheet and concluded that thay remain appropriate.

The repercussions surrounding the coronavirus outbreak are discussed in furtner detai in the Charman's Statement.

32 Prior year adjustment

While preparing the Group's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 the management of London Security
pic noticed that it had failed to account for deferred tax habilites on the acquisition of certain intangible assets arising through
business combinations in accordance with paragraph 19 of IAS12 “Income Taxes” in previous years. Management estimates
that a deferred tax lability of £881,000 (2017: £675,000) and goodwill of £2,382,000 (2017: £1,854,000) were not previously
recognised at 31 December 2018. Retained earnings at 1 January 2018 have been restated by £1,179,000 from £82.408,000
to £83,587,000. The deferred tax liability at 1 January 2018 has been restated by £675.000 from £1,830,000 to £2,505.000.
Goedwill at 1 January 2018 has been restated by £1.854,000 from £61,724,000 to £63,578,000. The analysis below shows

a reconcitigtion of the balance sheet at 31 December 2018 and the income statement for the year ended 31 December 2018
as previously reported and as restated in these financial statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2019

32 Prior year adjustment continued
Balance sheet as at 31 December 2018

Assets

Non-current assets

Property. plant and equipment 12,077 — 12,077
Intangible assets 63.695 2,382 GB.077
Deferred tax asset 811 — 811
Retirement benefit surplus 4 430 — 4,430

81,013 2,382 83,385

Current assets

Inventories 13,293 — 13.293
Trade and other receivables 28,732 - 28,732
Cash and cash equivalents 26,110 — 26,110
68,135 — 68.135
Total assets 149.148 2,382 151,530
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (22,713} — (22.713)
Income tax liabilities (1,731} - (1.731)
Borrowings {2,125} - (2,125}
Provision for liabilites and charges (5} - (5)
{26.574} — {28,574}
Non current liabilities
Trade and other payables {922} - {922}
Borrowings (7.441} — (7,441}
Derivative financial instruments 141 — 41y
Deferred tax liaoilities (1,898} {881 (2,779}
Retirernent benefit obligations 11,880 —_ (1,880}
Provision for liabilities and charges (181} - (181}
(12.363} Ba1 (13.244)
Totai liabilities 138,937} (881} (39.818;
Net assets 110.21 1,501 111,712
Shareholders’ equity
Qrdinary shares 123 - 123
Share premium 344 _ 344
Capital redemption reserve 1 - 1
Merger reserve 2.033 — 2,033
Other reserve 8.831 — 8,831
Retained earnings g98.577 1.601 100,078
Equity attributable to owners of the Parent Company 109,909 1,501 111,410
Non-controfling interest 302 — 302
Total equity 110,21 1,501 111,712
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32 Prior year adjustment continued
Income statement for the year ended 31 December 2018

Revenue 1537.711 — 13771

Cost of sales (31,780) — {31,780
Grass profit 105,931 — 105931

Distribution costs {50,593} — (50,593}
Administrative expenses 132.163) —  {32.163)
QOperating profit 23,175 - 23,175
Finance income 131 — 131

Finance costs (171 - (171}
Finance costs — net 40) — {40
Profit before income tax 23.135 — 23,135
Income tax expense 16,945) 322 (6.623)
Profit for the year 16,190 322 16,512

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the prior year have also been restated. The amount of the correction for the basic and
diluted earnings per share was an increase of 2.6p per share.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Parent Company balance sheet

as at 31 December 2019

20193 2T
A £000 Do

Fixed assets

na

Tangicle as3ets 102 1
Investmants 3 49,804 43,5

49,906 19,85

Current assets
Debtars 4 2363 2038
Casir at bank 2nd in hang 214 1,443

2,577 3434

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Borrowngs : ®19
Cradiiors 5] {2,194

)
)

(2,813  (0.837
)

Net current (liabilities}/assets (236

Total assets less current liabilities 49,670 50741

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Bormowings 5 (1,550) 2180
Denvative fnanoal instruments 8 (12 {3
(1,562) (2177
Net assets 48108 48587
Capital and reserves
Called up sharz cacital o 123 123
Skhars orentium ancount 344 3
Captal recemprion resenve fund 1 1
Profit and loss account 47,640 22099
Total shareholders’ funds 48,108 45387

The Pasant Company's praft for the vear was £9 329,000 (2018: £8,289,0001,
The registsrad number of the Company 15 00053177,
The notes on pages B0 o 83 are an intagral part of these financial statements,

The firancial stater-enis on pages 53 © 63 wers approved by the Board of Diractors on 21 May 2020 and were signed on
its bahali by:

J.G. Murray Jean-Jdacques Murray

Chairman
21 May 2020
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Parent Company statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December 2019

Salled

oare

capal

< 000
At 1 January 2018 123
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the financial year — — — 2,489 9.489
Contnbutions by and distributions to owners of the Company:
- cividends e — — (9,808} (9,808
At 1 January 2019 123 344 1 43,099 48,567
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the financiat year - - - 8,349 9.349
Contributions by and distributions to owners of the Company:
— dividends - — - (9.808) (9.808)
At 31 December 2019 123 344 1 47,640 48,108

The notes on pages 60 to 63 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Parent Company financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2019

1 Principal accounting policies

Basis of accounting

London Security ple is a public company limited by shares and incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom.
These linanciat statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102. the Financial Reporting

Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of Ireland {'FRS 1027;. The functional and presentation currency of these
financial statements is Sterling.

In these financial statements. the Company is considered to be a qualifying entity (for the purposes of this FRS) and has
apptied the exemptions avalable under FRS 102 in respect of the following disclosures:

- recconciliation of the number of shares outstanding from the beginning t¢ the end of the year,;
- Statement of Cash Flow and related notes: and
+ key management personnel compensation.

As the consalidated financial statements of London Security plc include the equivalent disclosures, the Company has also
taken the exemptions under FRS 102 avaitable in respect of the following disclosures:

+ presenting a Parent Company profit and loss account under Section 408 of the Compantes Act 2006; and

+ the disciosures required by FRS 10211 “Basic financial instruments” and FRS 102,12 *Other financal instrument issues”
in respect of financial instruments not falling within the fair value accounting rules of Paragraph 38(4) of Schedule 1.

These Parent Company financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, under the historical cost
convention as modified by revaluation of financial fiabilities held at fair value through profit and loss in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006 and applicabie accounting standards in the UK. The Directors have prepared these financial statements
on the fundamental assumption that the Company i1s a going concern and will continue to trade for at least 12 months following
the date of approval of the financial statements. In determining whether the Company's financial statements should be prepared
on a going concern basis, the Directors have considered the factors likely to affect future performance. The Directors have
reviewed trading and cash flow forecasts as part of the going concern assessment and based on ihis have the expectation

that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

A summary of the more important accounting policies, which have been consistently applied, 1s set out below.

Tangible fixed assets
The cost of tangible fixed assets is their purchase cost or internal production costs, together with any incidental costs of acquisition.

Depreciation is provided for on all tangible fixed assets on the straight ine method at rates calculated to write off the cost or
valuation less estimated residual vaiues over the estimated lives of the assets. The annuai rates are as follows:

Share in aircraft 5%

Fixed assets are reviewead for impairment if events or changes n circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable. Any impairment in value is charged to the profit and loss account,

Investments

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are included at cost unless. in the opinion of the Directors, an impairment has occurred.
in which case the deficiency is provided for in and charged te the Parent Company's profit and loss account.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on timing differences which arigse from the inclusion of income and expenses in tax assessments in
pericds different from those in which they are recognised in the financial statements. Deferred tax is not recognised on permanent
differences ansing because certain types of income or expense are non-taxable or are disallowabie for tax. or because certain
tax charges or allowances are greater or smaller than the corresponding income or expense.

Deferrad tax is provided in respect of the aaditional tax that will be paid or avoided on differences between the amount at which
an asset (other than goodwilly or liabilty 1s recognised in a business combination and the corresponding amoeunt that can be
deducted or assessed for tax. Goodwill is adjusted by the amount of such deferred tax.

Deterred tax is measurad at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the reversal of the related difference, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,
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1 Principal accounting policies continued

Deferred tax continued

Unrelieved tax 1osses and other deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that is it probable that they will be
recovered agamst the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.

Finance arrangement costs and interest rate caps

Costs of arranging bank lcans and interest rate caps are treated as a deduction from the loan fiability and are amortised
over the lives of the relevant loans.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial mstruments are recognised at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasuremeant to far value 1s recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Parent Company's shareholders is recognised as a lability in the financial statements when paid,
in the case of interim dividends, or in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Parent Company's shareholders,
in the case of final dividends.

2 Tangible assets

Snasein
arciaf
000
Cost
At 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 1,019
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2019 866
Charge for the year 51
At 31 December 2019 917
Net book amount
At 31 December 2019 102
At 31 December 2018 163

3 Investments

Cost
At 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 49,804

The Directors believs that the carrying value of the investments is supported by thewr underlying net assets.

A full fist of subsidiary undertakings s provided in note 28 of the Group accounts.

4 Debtors
2019 cute
2000 LIvEY
Amounts falling due within one year
Amaounts owed by Group undertakings 1,853 1.686
Other debtors 15 59
income tax recoverable 495 39

2,363 2.036

Amounts owed by Group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and are repayable
cn demand.

Annual Report and Accounts 2018 London Security plc @



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Parent Company financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2019

5 Borrowings

2019 ety
£'000 BRLER
Non-current (amounts falling due in more than one year)
Bank borrowings:
—1in one 1o two years 619 619
— between two and five years a3 1,650

1,550 2,169

Current {amounts falling due within one year or on demand}
Bank borrowings €819 619

Total borrowings 2,169 2,788

Interest rates (including the bank’s margin) on the bank loans in existence during the year averaged 2.16% (2018: 2.30%) per
annum. Bank loans are stated net of unamortised finance arrangement costs of £36,000 (2018: £47.000). of which £25,000
(2018: £38,000) is to be amortised after more than one year.

The Birectors consider that the fair values of the bank loans are not materially different from their book values.

The carrying amounts of the Company's borrowings, all of which are floating rate financial kabilities. are denominated in the
following currencies:

Weghted Vegned
average et age
Total nterest ta ntges;
2019 rate rate
£'000 2019 i
Currency

Sterling 2,169 2.16% 2,788 2.30%
2,169 2.16% 2,788 2.30%

6 Creditors
2013 2003
£000 000
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 1,960 1.941
Accruals and deferred income 234 137

2,194 2,078

Amounts due to Group undertakings are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

7 Deferred tax
The deferred tax asset comprises:

Aot 120 grisec AMCUnt GTFRCOGISes
2019 2G5 2019 208
£:000 0602 £'000 o000
Losses - — {971) {971)
Deferred tax asset - - {971) 971

Deferred tax is measured on a non-discountad basis at the tax rate that is expected to apply in the penods in which timing
differences will reverse, based on tax rates and laws substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, being a rate of 17%,
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8 Derivative financial instruments

2019 2utz
Assets Liabilities At
£'000 £000 2500
Interest rate agreements - 12 — 8

The Company has entered into an interest rate agreement which caps LIBOR at 1.5%. The agreement took effect from May 2018
and remains in effect until the loan is repaid in 2023, The liability represents the forecast increase in interest payable as a resuit
of this agresment over the remaining life of the ican at the year end. The fair value at the year end is calculated based on
cbservable interest rates.

9 Called up share capital

2019 2019 2713 2008
Number £'000 Mearnoer T
Authorised
Ordinary shares of 1p each 67,539,188 675 67,539,188 G675
Aliotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 1p each 12,261,477 123 12,261,477 123

There were no cutstanding options at 31 December 2019
The mid-market price of the Company’s shares at 31 December 2019 was £21.80 and the range during the year was £18.60 o £24.50.
The Parent Company had no employees during the year (2018: Nil).

The remuneration paid to the Parent Company auditors in respect of the audit of the Group and Parent Company financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set cut in note 7 to the Group financial statements.

The Board 1s recommending the payment of a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 of £0.20 per
ordinary share (2018: £0.40).

10 Commitments and contingent liabilities
The Parent Company had no financial or other commitmerts at 31 December 2019 (2018: CNil).
The Parent Compary was party to a cross guarantee under which it guaranteed the borrowings of certain ot its subsidiary

undertakings. At 31 December 2019 this guarantee amounted to £5.026,000 (2018: £6,811.000). No ioss is expected to arise
from this guarantee.

11 Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

The Parent Company regards EQI Fire SARL. a company registered in Luxembourg. as its ultimate parent undertaking through
its 80% interest in London Security plc. The Directors regard the Eden and Ariane Trusts as the ultimate controliing parties
through their controlling interest in EQI Fire SARL and Tristar Fire Corp,

12 Related party transactions

During the year the Company incurred costs amounting to £585,976 (2018: £601,244; in respect of the Executive Directors,
including the Head Office and other expenses undsr the Services Agreement referred to in the Directors” Remuneration Report.

The Company recharged and was reimbursed £86.000 (2018 £83.000! in relation to the Service Agreement by Andrews Sykes.
Andraws Sykes is related through commoen control.

The Company incurred £331,000 (2018 £335,000) of expenditure cn behalf of J.G. Murray during the year. This amount was
reimbursed in the year (2018: £59,000 was outstanding at the year end).

The Company incurred ENil (2018: £5,000) of expenditure on behalt of J-J. Murray during the year.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under FRS 102 "Related Party Disclosures” from disclosing
transactions between related parties within the London Security plc group of companies.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS GIVEN THAT the Annual General Meeting of London Security plc (the “Company™ will be held at 2 Jubitee Way,
Elland. West Yorkshire HXS 9DY. on 30 June 2020 at 11.30 am for the following purposes:

You will be asked to consider the following resolutions as ordinary resolutions:

1.

R O

To receive the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the Reports of the Diractors and Auditars
and the Directors’ Remuneration Report for that year.

To re-elect J.G. Murray as a Director, who retires by rotation under article 23.2 of the Company's articles of association.
To re-elect J-P. Murray as a Director. who retires by rotation under article 23.2 of the Company's articles of association.
To re-elect H. Shouler as a Director. who retires by rotation under article 23.2 of the Company's articles of association.
To declare a final dividend in respect of 2018 of £0.20 per ordinary share,

That Grant Thornton UK LLP be re-appointed as auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this
Meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting at which accounts are laid before the Company and
that its remuneration be fixed by the Directors.

That the Directors be generally and unconditionally authorised in accordance with Section 549 of the Companies Act 2006
{the “Act”) to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot relevant securities (as defined in Section 550 of the Act) up to
an aggregate nominai value equal to the whole of the authorised but unissued share capital of the Company immediately
following the passing of this resolution provided that such authority shall (unless and to the extent previcusly reveked, varied
or renewed by the Company in general meeting) expire at the conclusion of five years from the date this resolution is passed
provided that such authonty shall allow the Company to make an offer or enter into an agreement which would or might
require relevant securities to be allotted after the expiry of such authority and the Directors may allot relevant securities in
pursuance of any such offer or agreement as if the authority conferred by this resolution had not expired.

You will be asked to consider the following resolutions as special resclutions:

8.

That, subject to the passing of resolution 7 above, the Directors be and are empowered pursuant to Section 570 of the Act
to allot equity securities {within the meaning of Section 564 of the Act} of the Company for cash pursuant to the authonity
conferred by resolution 7 above as if Section 561 of the Act did not apply to such allotment, provided that this power shall
be limited to:

(i} the allotment of equity securities in connection with or pursuant to an offer by way of rghts tc the hoiders of ordinary
shares and other persons entitled to participate in such offer in propartion (as nearly as may be) to their respective
hoidings of ordinary shares, subject only to such exciusions or other arrangements as the Directors may consider
necessary or expedient to deal with fractional entitlements or legal or practicat problems under the faws of any territory
or the regulations or requirements of any regulatory body or any stock exchange in any territory: and

{iy the alfotment (other than pursuant to (i) above) of equity secunties up to an aggregate nominal amount of £6,131 and
such power shall expire on the date of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or 15 months after the dale
of the passing of this resolution {whichever is the earlier) but so that the Company may before such expiry make an offer
or agreement which would or might require equity securities to be allotted after such expiry and the Directors may ailot
equity securities pursuant to such an offer or agreement as If the power conferrad by this resolution had not expired.
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9. That the Company be and is ganerally and unconditic-ally authorised for the purposes of Section 701 of the Act 10 ma<e
onea ar mare market purchases (as definad in Section 731(2} of tha Act) on the London Stock Exchange of ordinary shares
of 1 pence each in the capital of the Company {"ordinary shares™) provided that:

(i) the maximum aggregate number of crdinary sharas authorised to be purchased is 500,000 shares;
(i} the minimum price which may be paid for such snaresis 1 pence per share;

{iii} the maximum price (exclusive cf expenses) which may be paid for such sharas 1s not more than 5% above ‘e average
of the middie market quotations for the Company's ordinary shares dernved from the London Stock Exchange Daily
Gficial List for the five business days immedialely preceding the day an which the purchase of the ordinary srares is
contracied to take placs;

{iv} tha authority conferred shali expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or 15 months
after the passing of this rasciution {whichever 's ‘he earlier); znd

) the Company may make a sontract to purchase its own shares under the authority corferred prior to the expiry of such
authority which will or may be executact whally or partly a'ter the expiry of such authority and may make a purchase of
its own shares in pursuance of any such contract,

By order ¢f the Beard

R. Poliard Registared office
Company Secretar Premier House
21 May 2020 2 Jubllea Way
. Eliand
Woast Yorkshire
Hx5 abv

Notes

1. Inresporss to the coronavirus cutbreak the UK government has amongst other measures prehipited public gatherings
of more than two pecple. The Board greatly vali.es the opportunity to meet sharehclders in persen at our AGMs. [t is with
much regret that | must advise that this year's AGM will take place as a clogsed meseting and sharehclders will not bs able to
attend in persen, The Cempany will make arrangaments such that legal requirements to hold the meeting can be satisfied
through the attendance of a minimum number of pecple and the format of the meeting will be purely functioral.

2. The cutcome cf the resolutions will as Usuai be determined by shareholder vote based on the proxy voles we receive.
You are srongly encouraged to vota by proxy or the resolutions centzined in the AGM Notice. Given the restrictions on
attendance, you are arcouraged to appoint the "Chairman of the Mesting” as your proxy ~ather than ancther person whic
will not be permitied to atlend the meeting.

3. Avotewithheld is not a vote in law, which means that the vota will not oe counted in the calculation of votes for or against
the resolution. If no voiing indication is given, your proxy will vote or abstain trom voling at his or her discretion, Your groxy
will vote (or abstain from voting} as he or she thinks fit in relation 1o ary other matter which is put before the Meeting.

Appointment of proxy using hard copy form of proxy

4. The nctes to the farm of proxy explan how to direct your proxy on how ¢ vote on each reselution or withhold their vote,
To appoint a proxy using the form of proxy, the form must be:

(a) completed and signed;
(b} sent or delivered to Nu-Swift Internaticnal L mited, Premier House, 2 Jubilee Way, Elland HXS gDY; and
{©) received no later than 48 hours before the fime of the Masting.

in tha case of a member which is a company, the form of proxy must be executed under its common seal or signed
on Its behalf by an officer of the company cr an attorney for the company. Any power of attcmey or any other authority
under which the form of proxy is signed {or a duy cartified copy of such power or authority) must be included with the
form of proxy. -
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Notice of Annual General Meeting continued

Notes continued

Appointment of proxy by joint members

9. In the case of appointment of a proxy by Joint shareholders, the signature of any one of them will suffice, but f a holder
other than the first-named holder signs, it will help the registrars if the name of the first-named holder is given.

Changing proxy instructions

G. To change your proxy instructions. simply submit a new proxy appontment using the methods set out above. Note that the
cut-off time for receipt of proxy appointments (see above) also applies in relation to amended instructions; any amended
proxy appointment receved after the relevant cut-off time wilt be disregarded.

It you subrmit more than one valid proxy appointment. the appointment received last bafore the latest time for the raceipt
of proxies will take precedence.
Termination of proxy appointments

7. in order to revoke a proxy instruction you will need to inform the Company by sending a signed hard copy notice clearly
stating your intention to revoke your proxy appointment to Nu-Swift International Limited, Premier House. 2 Jubilee Way,
Elland HX5 9DY. In the case of a member which is a company, the revocation notice must be executad under its common
seal or signed cn its behalf by an officer of the company or an attorney for the company. Any power of attornagy or any cther
authority under which the revocation notice is signed (or a duly certified copy of such power or authority) must be included
with the revocation notice.

The revocation notice must be received no later than 48 hours before the Meeting.

[t you attempt to revoke your proxy appointment but the revecation is received after the time specified then, subject to the
paragraph directly below, your proxy appointment will remain valid,

Appointment of a proxy does not preclude yeu from attending the Meeting and voting in persen. If you have appointed a
proxy and attend the Meeting in person, your proxy appointment will automatically be terminated.

Issued shares and total voting rights

8. Asat 11 am con 21 May 2020, the Company’s issued share capital comprised 12,261,477 shares of 1 pence each. Each
ardinary share carries the right te ane vole at a general meeting of the Company and, therefore. the total number of voting
rights in the Company as at 11 am cn 6 May 2020 was 12,261,477,

Documents on display
9. The register of Directors’ intergsts will be available for inspection at the registerad office of the Company fram 21 May 2020
until the time of the Meeting and for at least 15 minutes prior to the Meeting and durnng the Meaeting.

Communication

10. Except as provided above, members who have general quenes about the Meeting should use the foliowing method of
communication (no other methods of communication will be accepted):

s calling 01422 372852.

You may not use any electroric address provided either:
@ in this Notice of Annual General Meeting: or

b} In any related documents (including the form of proxy),

to communicate with the Company.
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Group companies

The United Kingdom

AFS Fire and Security Limited
58 69 Quezns Roan

High Wvcomie
Brckinghamsivre —H 15 bAH

1id 1277 g4 754
Viehisite atstireanasecusity, 0. <

Asco Extinguishers Company Limited
Unit 1.1

Festval Courr

Brand Flace

Glasgow G351 1DR

fal; G141 427 1144
Frmal cUstomen seroeBascn, ok com
Website VOVW. ARG, KGO

Beta Fire Protection Limited
Lrit 18

Western Road industnal Estate
Stratford-upon-Avon
Warwickshire CV27 GAH

Tel: Q1789 282 050
Emat: nfu@betatre.co.uk
Webhsite wanwy, betatireprtection. com

City Fire Protection and Maintenance
Services LLP

Trenton House

59A Impernal Way

Croydon CRO 4RR

Tek (0208 6849 7766
Email: adminigcryfire.co gk
Website wvaw Cityfire coukh

Firestop Services Limited
Unit 15

Cedar Parc

Lincoln Road

Baddington

Lincolnstire LNG 4RR

Tak 01507 723 322
Emaii erguINasBfire-siop.o.uk
Webstie. WL resionsenaCas. cu.ck

Fire Industry Specialists Limited

Unit 15

Cedar Parc

Lincoln Road

Coddington

Lincolnshirs LNG 4RR

Tel 01507 522 466

Emaii: erquinesaisita.co.uk
Website vovawfislia.couk

Amberfire Limited

Unit 15

Cedar Parc

Lincoln Road

Doddington

Lincolnshire LNG ARR

Tel: 01673 385 279

Email: info@amber-fire.co.uk
Website: wvrw.ambear-fire.cc.uk

GG Fire Protection Limited
Prerier House

2 Jubilee Way

Elland

West Yorkshu s XS 00Y

Tel: 0208 391 7510
Email customer.service@gchiraprntechon.co.k
Websita:  www.gcfireprotection.co.uk

GFA Premier Limited
Premier house

2 Jubilee Way

Elland

Weslt Yorkshire Fxd 90Dy

Teb (11422 577 521
Ermail customaer serace@yrapronuercouk

Hoyles Fire & Safety Limited
Pramier House

2 Jubiiee VWay

Elland

West Yorkshire HXS 90Y

lel: 01422 314 351
Fmzal. customaer service@hioyles oo .uk
Websio W oykIR.CO UK

KW Fire Protection Limited
Ajbion House

Chadderton

Cldham OLg TRP

Tei: 0161 628 9379

Email. enguines@hwire.co.uk

Website kearfire.couk

L. W, Safety Limited
Premer House
2 Jubkee Way

Eland
West Yorkshire HXS 90Y

Tel: (1422 314 350
Email. customaer. service@hvsafety couk
Website vy wsarety. ok

M Fire Limited

59:63 Queens Raoan

High Wycomee
Buckmghamsrre -1 1,5 644

Teal: 0144 764 744
t_manf- customer service @k ire coous
Yebsite www.mklre ook

Nu-Swift International Limted

Mu-Swift (Engineering) Limited
Pramier Souse

2 Jubiles Way

Elland

West Yorksture HXS 9DY

Tet 1422 372 B52
Emaul customer.seryicedn.-swft.co. ux
Webste wennu-swift.co.uk

Pyrotec Fire Protection Limited
GCaburn Enterpnise Park

Ringmrer

East Sussex BNg 5NP

Tet 0G0 634 9953
Emauil: salesapy otsc.co.uk
wWebsite, WAL RYTCIRC.COUK

52 Fire Solutions Limited
Unit 14 Littleton Drive
Cannock WS12 4TS

Tek 0R4E 51981386
Email. sales@sZfire.co.uk
Website S2fire.co.uk

Tunbridge Wells Fire Protection Limited
Caburn Enterprise Park

Ringmer

Fast Sussex BNS SNP

Tel 01825 767 600

Email: customer.service@twipltd. 2o.x
Website v twipitd.co.uk

TVF {UK} Limited

5269 Queens Roa

High Wycombe
Buckinghamshire HP13 6AN

Tel: 01494 450 641
Email customer.serviceBtviltd.couk
Website: wowrw b fltd couuk
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Group companies continued

Belgium

Alarm Masters 5.A,
Hekhostraar 45
3302 Aalst

Iz K 37 GERE A4
et mto@alarmemastars. be
Webisie vrwwalarinmasiers.be

All-Protec N.V.
Bogaertstrzat 18
9910 Knesslare

Tal: 00 32 9375 2044
Email infog all-protec.be
Ansul S.A.

Ansul Belgium 5.A,
irdustrialaan 35
2-1702 Groot-Bigaarden

Tak 00 52 24537 V21
Emai) ma@ansul.be
Wabsite wwav.ansal ne

Assurance Protection Service Spri
406 Chausee de Wavre

1300 Wavre

Tel, 00 32 7187 7504

Email info@apsprotecticrincendie.be
Website vrwvw.apsprotectionincendie.be

Dimex Technics S.A,
42 RAue de I'Eglise
4710 Lortzen Herpesthal

Tel: 00 32 8739 0401
Email info@dimex-tecnmics.be

HP Fire Prevention Spri
ADG Chauses de Warre
13N0 Wavre

Tet, 00 32 1080 4402
Emai info@hofira.be
Website wary hpfire be
Importex 8.A.

42 Hue de I'tylise

A0 T ontzen erhesthed

led W0 32 5788 V24:
Froail infa@importex.be

Security Alarm Service Company Spri
42 Sue de 'Eglise
4710 Lortzen Fercesthal

Tel: 00 32 2643 HTES
Ermai ntu@seclr tyalanmsernvice.be
Wb el secun tyalanmsanvce.be

Somati FIE N.V.
Irdustnetaan *3a
9320 Erembodayam
Tel

t mail
Viehsite

Le Chimiste Spri
406 Chausee 2e Wayrs
1300 Vyavra

Tel. 20 32 “C86 8412
Emad infoZiechimse.ne
Braco B.V.B.A.

Hekkestrzat 45

9308 Aaist

Tel: 00 32 5321 4370

Email nfogbracofreprotechion.be

DC Security B.V.B.A.
Vaartstraat 10
2235 Hulshout

Ted. NG 32 1522 5575
Email: into@dcsecunty.be
Website vwwewdGsecurty.be
Luxembourg

AL.P.A, sarl
10 Rue Robert Krens
1702 Petange

felk 00 352 2631 3013
Emad alpi@atpilu
Wabsite. wrvnw.alpi.lu

The Netherlands
Ansul BV,

Ansul Solutions B.V.

Platinastraat 15
8211 AR Lalystag

Tek 00 31 320 2-0864
Email: wfo@ansul.nl
Website s ansulnt

Boensma Brandbeveiliging B.V.
Burenvey 20
7621 (GX¥ Bome

Tal: 00 31 541 870040
Email. Info@boensmabrandce rediging.nl
Yebsite wyiw. boensmabrandbevediging.nl
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Nu-Swift Brandbeveidiging B.V.
Ringover 43
6526 TF Ambigr

Teal. O 31 2675 6303530
Frmail nto@nu-swaftaol
Yiebsite WYL ST ]

NL Brandbeveiliging B.V.
Peiunialaan 1D

sman

55827 HA Waalre

Tel. 00 240 243 2196
Email nfo@niprandbeveligng.
Websile vavwanitsrandbevelginn.ni

Prevent Brandbeveiliging B.V.
Maasdijksewsag 107
2291 Pd Watenngen

Tel, 00 31 174 526700
Emal: nfo@prevent.orarcheveligirg.ni
Website www.prevertirancbeveligirg.nd

Record Brandbeveiliging B.V.
Qostergracht 24
3765 LZ Soast

Tel: 00 31 355 027956
Emnaik: info'@recordbrandbevetiging. |
Websie vewwwerecordbrandbeseilbgirg.nl

Braho Brandpreventie B.V.

Maasdiksewag 107
2281 PJ Wateringen

Tek 00 31 793 410708
Emaii: info@braho.ni
Website. wwyy,braho.ni

Blusdesign B.V.
Bergweqg 350
3504 HL Vesnendaal

Ted: 00 31 312 508 369
Ernalil. nfo@blusdesgn.com
Websie. www blusdesign.com

Brandpreventie Groep B.V.
Daalderweg 22
507 OTF Zaandam

Tal: 0031 75 631 5558
Ermail. info@brandpreventiegroep.nl
Websiie www.brandpreventiegroes.rl



Denmark

Linde Brandmateriel Aps
Industring] 51A
4000 Roskilue

Tezl [BIYIS)

Frmal lir ity and@intehrantd, ok
Wehsre wyvw i cenrand.dk
Austria

Total Fire-Stop Brandschutztechnik G.m.b.H.

Tillmanngasss 5

1220 Wien

Tel: Qo a3 259 36310
L rrail. wdoEotal.at
Wehstte wronatoralk at

Blesherger Ges.m.b.H.
Hasnerstrasse 12

A-4020 Linz
Tel: 004373273532 34
Wabsite www.biesherger.at

Noris Feuerschutzgeraete G.m.b.H.
Baumki-cherstrasse 2
8020 Graz

Tel: 00433186 711821
Email zentrale &nons.at
Website VIVOALTIONS. At

P.M.P. Feuerldschgerite Produktions- und
Vertriebsges.m.b.H
Waltendorter Hauptsirasse 5

8010 Graz

Tek 00 43 316 46 152 68
Email: office@pyrus-pmp.at
Website YW, DY US-DMp.at

Florian Feuerschutz G.m.b.H.

Dorf 19
5732 Muhlocach «+m Pinzgau

Ted: 00 43 8566 7450
Emall. office'@euerschutz.a
Websiter s feusrschutz at

France

One Protect sarl
Z.l. Sante Agatra

Rue _avoisier

<7192 Flurangs

Tel:
Email
Hiebsire

Germany

00 33382 895247
contacr@oneprotectaartos
wahaLnneprotectsarl

LUDWIG Brandschutztechnik G.m.b.H.
Giewerbestrazsse 2
D-24292 Suederbrarup

Tel.
fmail

U0 494641 2242
mioEbhrandschotztechn-iooweg de

IFH Feuerschutz Hollmann G.m.b.H.
Irmerter Strasse 211

38875 Hemer

Tel.
Email
Website

00 49 2372 31066
info@feuerschutz-hollmarn.de
vrvrafeuerschutz-holirann.de



